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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
HIMALAYAN LAGHUBITTA BITTIYA SANSTHA LIMITED

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financil statements of Himalayan Laghubitta Bittiva
Sanstha Limited (referred to as “the company” or “HLBSL”), which comprises the Statement
of Financial Position as on Ashadh 32, 2082 (corresponding to July 16, 2025), the Statement of
Profir or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Changes in Equity and the
Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to accounts including a summary of
the significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements present fairly, i all material respects, the
financial positon of HLBSL as at Ashadh 32, 2082 (corresponding to July 16, 2025), and its -
financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Nepal Standards on Auditing (NSAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further deseribed in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the [Yinancial Statements section of our report. We are independent of HLBSL in
accordance with the ICAN’s Handbook of the Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial staterents in
Nepal, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibiliies in accordance with these
requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. !

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professfonal judgement, were of most sigmficance
in the audit of the financial smatements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the financial statements, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do

. not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how

our audit addressed the matter is provided in the context.

In addition to the matter described in the Basis for Opinion section, we have determined the
matters describer] below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report:

New Baneshwor, Kathmandu
Tel:01-5543582/9851224702

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS | Email: rokayanara@gmail.com

| n.b.rokaya.associates@outlook.com
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Key Audit Matters

How our Audit addressed the matter

Information Technology (IT) Controls

The company’s key financial accounting and
reporting processes are highly dependent on
the automated control over the company’s 1T
system. There is a risk that gaps in the change
management, segregation of duties or users
access management controls (in relation to key
financial accounting and reporting system)
may undermine our ahility to place some
reliance thereon in our audit making it a key
audit matter.

Our Procedure included:

a) We tested the design, operation, and
effectiveness of control over granting,
removal, and appropriateness of access
rights on the accounting and reporting
system of the company.

b) We obtained and inspected the change
management process and, for a sample of
changes in inputs and control functions
on the systems, has been reviewed to
confirm that changes had been performed
in line with approved decisions.

c) We have tested a sample of outputs
particularly interest income and interest
expenses and provisions in loans and
advances computed by the system with
manual calculations.

d) We considered the change management,
segregation of duties controls and outputs |
in relation to financial accounting and
reporting systems to be acceptable.

No matenal exceptions were noted.

Loan Loss Provision / Impairment of

Loans and Advances

As per NIRS 9 Financial Instruments, banks

and financial instmrtions shall measure

impairment loss on loans and advances higher
of:

a) Amount derived as per norms prescribed
by Nepal Rastra Bank for loan loss
provisioning  (Directive 2 of Unified
Directive to Microfinance Institutions);
and

b) Amount determined as per NFRS 9:
Financial Instruments adopting expected
credit loss model.

As per norms prescribed by NRB, provision at

prescribed rate should be created on loans and

advances based on overdue status on loans and
advances as well as utilizanon of loan, status of
collateral and Status of borrower, etc.

As per NFRS 9, impairment of loans and
advances should be made on individual
impairment basis for loans and advances that

Our Procedures regarding audit & verification
of impairment of loans and advances included:
We reviewed sample credit files for loan
utilization, borrower credit history  and
physical verification of projects (if applicable)
of the loan.

a) For Amount denved as per the norms

prescribed by Nepal Rastra bank:

¢ We reviewed the NRB 2.2 report and
ensured classification of the loans are
“accurate based on the overdue status of
the individual loans. The accuracy of the
overdue status and classification was
carricd out by sample tests done through
comparison of loan statements with
repayment schedules of individual loans.

e Once the classification of the loans is
ensured, we carried out  manual
calculations of overall loan files of the
company and compared it with system
calculations to ensure the adequacy of the
imparrmentt
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are individually significant and collective | b) For amount derived as per NFRS 9:

impairment basis for homogenous groups of | ¢ We evaluated the reasonableness of
loans that are not considered individually management's assessments on individually
significant. The impairment of loans and 7
advances under incurred loss model require
assessment of future cash flows as well as
historical loss experience of portfolios.

impaired loans and on grouping of the
homogenous loans.
o We verified key assumptions, tested
relevant data accuracy, and assessed the
The amount charged as impairment loss in the compliance with NERS 9's requirements
financial statement is the determinant of the for financial asset impairment.
company’s profitability and distributable

N s : The impairment charges were made as per
dividends making it the key audit matter. P 8 P

the norms prescribed by Nepal Rasrra
Bank and no material exceptions were
noted.

Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The management are responsible for the other information such as Report of Board of
Directors/Chairman’s Statements to be presented in the company’s Annual Report for the year.
Our opinion on the Financial Sratements does not cover that other information and, accordingly
we do not express any form of assurance or conclusion thereon. '

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility s to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements, or our knowledge obrained during our audit or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated. As the other information documents are in the process of completion, the
management has provided written representations that final version of the documents will be
provided when available.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards and for such internal control as management
determines 1s necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the company's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management cither intends to liquidate the
+ Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. Those charged with
governance are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free
from materal misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance s a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with NSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are consid

Tewreas wgfaw fasi wwan fafwes
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in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to mnfluence the economic decisions of users
taken on the bases of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with NSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

® Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The rsk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud 1s higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

® Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control.

® Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

® Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a matenial uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's abiliry to°
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor's report to the relared disclosures in the financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

® Hvaluate the overall presentation, strucrure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying (ransactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audir and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. We also provide those charged
with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our ifidepende

safeguards.

‘here applicable, related

femeaw Fafaw fawdm o fafree
Himalayan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited
Frvrer g B - bl g s fefry e

A Subsidiary company of Himalayan Bank Limited




9y Y aiiiew gfeaes
AT. 9. Rotq/C¥

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
Based on our examination, we would like to further report that:

1. We have obtained all the information and explanations, which to the best of our knowledge
and beliel were necessary, [or the purpose of audit,

. Based on our examination, proper books of accounts as required by law have been kept
by the company.

i, The Statement of Financial Position, the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement, and the Statement of Changes in
Equity dealt with by this report agree with the books of accounts maintained by the
company.

w. Returns recetved from the branch offices of the company were adequate for the purpose
of audit though the statements were not independently audited.

v.  The capiral fund, risk bearing fund and the provision for probable impairment of asset of
the Microfinance are adequate as per the directives issued by Nepal Rastra Bank.

vi. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanation given
to us and from our examination of the books of accounts of the company, we have not
come across any case where the Board of Directors, the representative or any employee of
the company has acted contrary to the provision of law relating to accounts nor caused
direct loss or damage to the company deliberately or acted in a manner that would
jeopardize the interest and security of the company, its sharcholders and its depositors.

vii. The business of the company has been conducted satisfactorily and operated within its
jurisdiction and has been functioning as per the NRB Directives.

FCA. Nar Bahadur Rokaya
Proprietor

. N.B. Rokaya & Associates., Chartered Accountants
UDIN: 251127CA01254MFCWA

Place: Kathmandu, Nepal
Date: 2082/08/11
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Himalayan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited
Statement of Financial Position
As at 32nd Ashadh 2082 (16 July 2025)

Figures in NPR

Particulars Note As at 32nd Ashadh 2082 | %™ 321;; l‘“‘ gt
Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents 4.1 638.587.437 262,559,158
Statutory Balances and Due from Nepal Rastra Bank 4.2 24,000,000 23,000,000
Placement with Bank and Financial Institutions 43 - -
Derivative Financial Instruments 4.4 _ .
Other Trading Assets 45 - -
Loans and advance to MFIs and cooperatives 4.6 - -
Loans and advances to customers 4.7 4.895.696.504 3,743,795.732
Investment securities 4.8 1,200,000 -
Current tax assets 4.9 24961804 16,019,449
Investment properties 4.10 - =
Property and Equipment 4.11 45,715,137 47.391.677
Goodwill and Intangible assets 4.12 58.930 143.302
Deferred Tax Assets 4.13 15,105,384 12,610,484
Other assets 4.14 24 817.889 28,505,297
Total Assets 5,670,143.,084 4,134,025,100
Liabilities

Due to Bank and Financial Institutions 4.15 - -
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank 4.16 - -
Derivative Financial Instrument 4.17 - -
Deposits from customers 4.18 1,104.750.903 204 279.515
Borrowings 4.19 3.828.103.650 2,602,697.955
Current Tax Liabilities 4.9 - -
Provisions 4.20 - -
Deferred Tax Liabilities 4.13 - -
Other liabilities 421 209.280.637 171.070,656
Debt securities issued 422 - -
Subordinated Liabilities 4.23 - -
Total liabilities 5,142,135,189 3,678,048,127
Equity

Share Capital 4.24 319,818,130 319,818,130
Share Premium 45,543,048 45,543,048
Retained Larnings 38,651,242 (6.546,039)
Reserves 4.25 123,995,475 97.161.835
Total equity attributable to equity holders 528.007.894 455976973
Non-controlling interest

Total Equity 528,007,894 455,976,973
Total Liabilities and Equity 5,670,143,084 4,134,025,100
Contingent Liabilities and commitment 4.26 - -
Net Assets Value Per share 165.10 142.57

The accompanying notes are integral part of these financial statements.

As per our report of even date

Suman Kumar Dahal
Department Head - Finance

Binod Acharya
Chief Executive Officer

Sunita Acharva
Director

Shiba Prasad Chaulagain
Director

CA. Nar Bahadur Rokava
N.B. Rokava & Associales
Chartered Accountanis

Krishna Prasad Adhikari Rudra Prasad Dahal Saroj Shrestha  Subasan IHarsha Bajracharva Bijaya Man Nakarmi
Director Director Director Director Chairman
Date: 2082-08-11
Place: Kathmandu
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Himalayan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited

Statement of Profit or Loss

For the year ended 32nd Ashadh 2082 (16 July 2025)
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Figures in NPR
Particulars Note For the Year ended For the Year ended
32nd Ashadh 2082 J1ist Ashadh 2081

Interest income 4.27 673,383,079 615,491,569
Interest expense 4.28 (302.488,850) (392,764.488)
Net interest income 370,894,229 222,727,081
Fees and commission income 4.29 53,973,204 45,934,995
Fees and commission expense 4.30 (958,693) (2,466.,600)
Net fee and commission income 53.014,511 43,468,395
Net interest and commission income 423,908,741 266,195,476
Net trading income 4.31 & =
Other operating income 4.32 - =
Total operating income 423,908,741 266,195,476
Impairment charge/(reversal) for loans and other losses 4.33 38,228,954 24,330,115
Net operating income J85.679,787 241,865,361
Operating expense
Personnel expenses 4.34 (197.715,104) {172,867.092)
Other Operating expenses 4.35 (64.436,452) (54,573,319)
Depreciation and Amortisation 4.36 (18.122,188) (17,929,557)
Operating Profit 105,406,043 (3,504.608)
Non operating Income 4.37 - 14.721
Non operating expense 4.38 (37,808) (49.829)
Profit before income tax 105,368,235 (3,539,715)
Income tax expense 4.39

Current Tax expenses (36.624,898) (2,196,022)

Deferred Tax income/(expenses) 2.719,106 3.728.026
Profit for the period 71,462,442 (2,007,711)
Profit attributable to:

Equity holders of the Bank 71.462,442 (2,007.711)

Non-controlling interests -
Profit for the period 71,462,442 (2,007,711)
Earnings Per Share (EPS)

Basic EPS 22.34 (0.63)

Diluted EPS 22.34 (0.63)

The accompanying notes are integral part of these financial statements. As per our report of even date

Suman Kumar Dahal
Department Head - Finance

Binod Acharya
Chief Executive Officer

Sunita Acharva
Director

Shiba Prasad Chaulagain
Director

CA. Nar Bahadur Rokaya
N.B. Rokaya & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Krishna Prasad Adhikari
Director

Rudra Prasad Dahal
Director

Saroj Shrestha
Director

Subasan Harsha Bajracharya
Director

Bijaya Man Nakarmi
Chairman

Date: 2082-08-11
Place: Kathmandu
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Himalayan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited
Statement of Comprehensive Income

For the year ended 32nd Ashadh 2082 (16 July 2025)

Figures in NPR

Pt For the Year ended For the Year ended
32nd Ashadh 2082 31st Ashadh 2081
Profit for the year 71,462,442 (2,007,711)
Other Comprehensive Income, net of income tax
a) Items that will not be reclassified to Profit or Loss
Gains / (Losses) from investment in equity instruments measured at fair value - -
Gains / (Losses) on revaluation - -
Actuarial Gains / (Losses) on defined benefit plans 747,353 214,993
Income tax relating to above items (224.206) (64.498)
Net other Comprehensive Income that will not be reclassified to Profit or Loss 523,147 150,495
b) Items that are or may be reclassified to Profit or Loss
Gains (Losses) on cash flow hedge - -
Exchange gains (Losses) arising from translationg financial assets of foreign operation - -
Income tax relating to above items - -
Reclassify to Profit or Loss - -
Net other Comprehensive Income that are or may be reclassified to Profit or Loss - -
¢) Share of other comprehensive income of associate accounted as per equited method - -
Other Comprehensive income for the vear, net of income tax 523,147 150,495
Total Comprehensive income for the year 71,985,589 (1,857,216)
Total Comprehensive income attributable to:
Equity shareholder of the bank 71,985,589 (1,857,216)
Non controlling interest - -
Total Comprehensive income for the period 71,985,589 (1,857,216)

The accompanying notes are integral part of these financial statements.

Suman Kumar Dahal
Department Head - Finance

Sunita Acharya
Director

Binod Acharva
Chief Executive Officer

Rudra Prasad Dahal
Director

Krishna Prasad Adhikari
Director

Saroj Shrestha
Director

Date: 2082-08-11
Place: Kathmandu

As per our report of even date

Shiba Prasad Chaulagam

Director

Subasan Harsha Bajracharya

Director
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A Subsidiary company of Himalayan Bank Limited

CA. Nar Bahadur Rokaya
N.B. Rokaya & Associates

Chartered Accountants

Bijaya Man Nakarmi
Chairman
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Himalayan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited

Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended 32nd Ashadh 2082 (16 July 2025)

Figures in NPR

Particulars

For the Year ended

For the Year ended

Dividend received

Receipts from other operating activities
Interest paid

Commission and fees paid

Cash payment to employees

(Other expense paid

(302.488,850)
(198,136,074)
(46,958.546)

32nd Ashadh 2082 J31st Ashadh 2081
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Interest received 656,105,057 616,805,993
Fees and other income received 54,387,045 45,934,995

(392,764.488)
(173,845,137)
(39,398,007)

Receipts from sale of invesiment securities
Purchase of property and equipment

Receipt [rom the sale of property and equipment
Acquisition of intangible assets

Receipt from the sale of intangible assets
Purchase of investment properties

Receipt from the sale of invesiment properties
Interest received

Dividend received

(16,361,275)

Operating cash Mlows before changes in operating assets and liabilities 162,908,632 56,733,356
(Increase)/Decrease in operating assets

Due from Nepal Rastra Bank (1,000,000} -
Placement with Bank and Financial Institutions - -
Other trading assets - -
Loans and advances to bank and financial institutions - &
Loans and advances to customers (1,172,851,703) 661,639,057
Other assets 4,108,378 (6,945 408)
Increase/(Decrease) in operating liabilities

Due to bank and linancial institutions - -
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank - -
Deposit from customers 200,471,387 (89,746,624)
Borrowings 1,225,405.695 (567,742.881)
Other liabilities 20,114,417 (7.913.991)
Net cash flow from operating activities before tax paid 439,156,806 46,023,509
Income taxes paid (45,567.252) (2,941,651)
Net cash flow from operating activities 393,589,554 43,081,858
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of investment securities (1,200,000) -

(22.248.189)
14,721

Net cash used in investing activities

(17,561,275)

(22,233,468)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Receipt from issue of debt securities

Repayment of debt securities

Reciepts from issue of subordinated liabilities
Repayment of subordinated liability

Receipts from issue of shares

Dividends paid

Interest paid

(Onher recepit/payment

Net cash from financing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at begening of the period

Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash and cash equivalents held

376,028,279
262,559,158

20,848,390
241,710,768

Cash and cash equival

Is al the end of the period

638,587,437

262,559,158

The accompanying notes are integral part of these financial statements. As per our report of even date

Shiba Prasad Chaulagain
Director

CA. Nar Bahadur Rokaya
N.B. Rokaya & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Suman Kumar Dahal
Department Head - Finance

Rinod Acharya
Chief Executive Officer

Sunita Acharya
Director

Krishna Prasad Adhikan Rudra Prasad Dahal Saroj Shrestha Subasan Harsha Bajracharya Bijaya Man Nakarnu
Director Director Director Director Chairman
Date: 2082-08-11
Place: Kathmandu
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Statement of Distributable profit or loss
For the year ended 32nd Ashadh 2082 (16 July 2025)

As per NRB Regulation
pe ¢ Figure in NPR

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Net Profit/(loss) as per Statement of Profit or Loss 71,462,442 (2,007,711)
Appropriation

a. General Reserve (14,292 488) -

b. Foreign Exchange Fluctuation fund - -
c. Capital redemption reserve - -

d. Corporate social responsibility fund (714.624) =

e. Employees training fund (1,016,820) -

f. Customer Protection Fund (1,071,937) -

g. Other - -
Profit/(loss) before regulatory adjustment 54,366,573 (2,007,711)
Regulatory Adjustments:

a. Interest Receivable (-)/previous accrued interest received(+) (8,641.533) 211.919

b. Short loan loss provision in accounts(-)/reversal{-+) - -
¢. Short provision for possible losses on investment(-)/reversal(-+) - -
d. Short provision for possible losses on Non-Banking Assets (-)/reversal(+) - -
e. Deferred Tax Assets recognized(-)/reveral(+) (2,494 .900) (3,663,528)
f. Goodwill recognized (-)/Impairment of Goodwill(+) - -
. Bargain purchase gain recognized (-)/reversal(+) - -
h. Actuarial Loss recognized (-)/reversal(+) - -
i. Other (+/-) - -

"-Corporate Social Responsibility Expenses (Return Back) - 336715
'“Restructured Reserve 1,967,141 (1,967.141)
Net Profit for the yvear end 32nd Ashadh, 2082 avaiable for distribution 45,197,281 (7,089,747)
Opening Retained Earning As on 1st Shrawan, 2081 (6,546,039) 543,707
Adjustments(+/-)
Distribution:

Bonus Share issued - -
Cash Dividend Paid = =
Total Distributable profit or (loss) as on year end 38,651,242 (6,546,039)
Annualized Distributable Profit/Loss Per Share 12.09 (2.05)

Suman Kumar Dahal Binod Acharya Sunita Acharya Shiba Prasad Chaulagain CA. Nar Bahadur Rokava
Department Head - Finance Chief Executive Officer Director Director N.B. Rokava & Associates

Chartered Accountants

Krishna Prasad Adhikari Rudra Prasad Dahal Saroj Shrestha Subasan Harsha Bajracharya Bijaya Man Nakarmi
Director Director Director Director Chairman

Date: 2082-08-11
Place: Kathmandu
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Himalayan Laghubitta Bittiva Sanstha Limited

Notes to the Financial statements for the year ended 32nd Ashadh 2082

Note No. 4.1

Cash and Cash Equivalents Figures in NPR

Particulars As at 32nd Ashadh As at 31st Ashadh
2082 2081

Cash in hand 497,960 351,450

Balance with B/FIs 622,147.185 215.405,732

Money at call and short notice 15,942 292 46.801.976

Other - -

Total 638,587,437 262,559,158

Other cash and cash equivalent includes term deposit with maturity period less than 3 month from the date of acquistion

Note No. 4.2
Statutory Balances and Due from Nepal Rastra Bank

Figures in NPR

Particulars

As at 32nd Ashadh
2082

As at 31st Ashadh
2081

Statutory Balances with NRB

Statutory Balances with NRB BFIs
Securities Purchased under re-sale agreement
Other depoist and receivable from NRB

24,000,000

23.000,000

Total

24,000,000

23,000,000

Note No. 4.3
Placement with Bank and Financial Institutions

Figures in NPR

Particulars

As at 32nd Ashadh
2082

As at 31st Ashadh
2081

Placements with domestic B/FIs
Less: Allowances for Impairment

Total

Note No. 4.4
Derivative Financial Instruments

Figures in NPR

Particulars

As at 32nd Ashadh
2082

As at 31st Ashadh
2081

Held for trading
Interest rate swap
Currency swap
Forward exchange contract
Others

Held for risk management
Interest rate swap
Currency swap
Forward exchange contract
Others

Total

femmeaw Fafaw o dwn fafree
Himalayan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited
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Note No. 4.5
Other Trading Assets Figures in NPR
Pirticilars As at 32nd Ashadh As at 31st Ashadh
2082 2081
Treasury Bills - -
Government Bonds - -
NRB Bonds - -
Domestic Corporate Bonds = -
Equities - s
Other = %
Total - -
Pledged - -
Non-pledged - -
Note No. 4.6
Loans and advances to MFIs and Cooperatives Figures in NPR
Piiticutngs As at 32nd Ashadh As at 31st Ashadh
2082 2081
Loans to microfinance institutions - -
Loans to Fls - -
Loans to Cooperatives - -
Less:Allowance for impairment - -
Other
Less: Allowance for impairment - -
Total - -
Note 4.6.1
Allowance for impairment Figures in NPR
Particulars As at 32nd Ashadh As at 31st Ashadh
2082 2081
Balance for 1™ Shrawan - &
Impairment loss for the year - -
Charge for the year = =
Recoveries/reversal - -
Amount written off - -
Balance at Asar end - -
Note No. 4.7
Loans and advances to customers Figures in NPR
Particulars As at 32nd Ashadh As at 31st Ashadh
2082 2081
Loans and advances measured at amortised cost 5.008,088,676 3,817,958,950
Less: Impairment allowances (112,392,172) (74,163,219)
Collective Allowances (19,3806,581) (22.915,115)
Individual Allowances (93,005,591) (51,248,104)
Net amount 4,895,696,504 3,743,795,732
Loans and advances measured at FVTPL - s
Total 4,895,696,504 3,743,795,732

B Himalayan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited
i g e+ Wi AT i B e
A Subsidiary company of Himalayan Bank Limited
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Note No. 4.7.1
Analysis of Loans and advances- By Product

Figures in NPR

Particulars

As at 32nd Ashadh
2082

As at 31st Ashadh
2081

Product
Term Loans
Short term, term loan
Long term. Term loan
Hire purchase loan
Personal Residential Loans

4,230,708.685

3.060.086,361

Staff loans 20,623,683 11,161,850

Others 697.009,790 704,663,213

Sub Total 4,948,342,158 3,775.911.,425
Interest receivable 59,746,518 42.047.526
Grand Total 5,008,088,676 3.817,958,950

Note No. 4.7.2
Analysis of Loans and advances- By Collateral

Figures in NPR

Particulars

As at 32nd Ashadh
2082

As at 31st Ashadh
2081

Secured
Immovable assets
Government Guarantee
Collateral of Government securities
Collateral of fixed deposit receipt
Group Guarantee
Personal Guarantee

696,711,477

4.231.006,998

704,093,329

3.060.656.246

11,161,850

Other collateral 20,623,683
Subtotal 4,948.342,158 3,775,911,425
Unsecured - -
Grand Total 4,948.342,158 3,775,911.,425
Note No. 4.7.3
Allowances for Impairment Figures in NPR
il As at 32nd Ashadh As at 31st Ashadh
2082 2081
Specific allowance for impairment
Balance at Shrawan 1 51,248,104 37,154,114
Impairment loss for the vear
Charge for the year 41,757,488 14,093,989
Recoveries/reversal during the year - -
Write-offs - -
Exchange rate variance on foreign currency - -
Other Movement - -
Under Specific:
Substandard Provision 2,305,369 -
Doubtful Provision 1,769,748 -
Loss Loan Provision 88,861,324 -
Additional Provision 69,150
Balance at Ashadh end 93,005,591 51,248,104
Collective allowance for impairment
Balance at Shrawan 1 22,915,115 12,678,989
Impairment loss for the year
Charge/(reversal) for the year (3,528.534) 10,236,126
Exchange rate variance on foreign currency - -
Other movement - -
Under Collective:
General Loan Loss Provision 10,813,386 -
Walchlist Provision 557,349 2
Restructure/reschedule provision 8,015,846 -
Balance at Ashadh end 19.386.581 22,915,115
Total Allowance for impairment 112,392,172 74,163,219
femmeaw Fafaw o dwn fafree
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Note No. 4.8

Investment securities Figures in NPR

Puiticalars As at 32nd Ashadh As at 31st Ashadh
2082 2081

[nw_:stment securitics measured at amortised cost(as FV is not 1.200.000 )

available)

Investment Securities measured at FVTOCI - -

Total 1,200,000 -

Note No. 4.8.1

Investment securities measured at ammortized cost Figures in NPR

Particulars As at 32nd Ashadh As at 31st Ashadh
2082 2081

Debt securities

Government bonds

Government treasury bills

Nepal Rastra Bank bonds

Nepal Rastra Bank deposits instruments
Other

Less: specific allowances for impairment

Total

Note No. 4.8.2

Investment in equity measured at fair value through other comprehensive income

Figures in NPR

Particulars

As at 32nd Ashadh
2082

As at 31st Ashadh
2081

Equity intrument
Quoted equity instrument
Unquoted equiuty instrument

Total

Note No 4.8.3
Infromation relating to investment in equities

Figures in NPR

As at 32nd Ashadh 2082 As at 31st Ashadh 2081
Particulars

Cost Fair value Cost Fair value
Investment in Quoted Equity

.......... Lid.

......... Shares of Rs. ..... Each - - - -

.......... Ltd.

......... Shares of Rs. ..... Each - - - -
Total - - - -
Investment in Unquoted Equity

National Banking Institute Ltd.

12000 Shares of Rs. 100 Each 1,200,000 1.200,000.00 - -

.......... Ltd.

......... Shares of Rs. ..... Each - - - -
Total 1,200,000.00 1,200,000.00 < =
Grand Total 1,200,000.00 1,200,000.00 . -

Tewreas wgfaw fasi wwan fafwes
Himalayan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited
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Note No. 4.9
Current Tax Assets

Figures in NPR

Particulars

As at 32nd Ashadh
2082

As at 31st Ashadh
2081

Current tax assets
Current year income tax assets
Tax assets of prior periods

61,586,702

18,215.471

Sub-total

61,586,702

18,215,471

Current tax Liabilities
Current year income tax liabilities
Tax Liabilities of prior periods

36.624.898

2,190,678
5.344

Sub-total

36,624,898

2,196,022

Total

24,961,804

16,019,449

Note No 4.10
Investment Properties

Figures in NPR

Particulars

As at 32nd
Ashadh 2082

As at 31st Ashadh
2081

Investment Properties measured at fair value
Balance as on 1st Shrawan

Addition/Disposal during the year

Net changes in fair value during the year
Adjustment/Transfer

Net Amount

Investment Properties measured at cost
Balance as on 1st Shrawan
Addition/Disposal during the year
Adjustment/Transfer

Accumulated depreciation

Accumulated impairment loss

Net Amount

Total

femmeaw Fafaw o dwn fafree
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Note No. 4.13 Figures in NPR
Deferred Tax As at 32nd Ashadh 2082
Particulars Deferred Tax Defel'l:e_d"l"ax Net Deferrel.:l ‘"I:ax
Assets Liabilities Assets/ (Liabilities)
Deferred Tax on Temporary differences on following items
Loans and advance to MFIs and cooperatives - - -
Loans and Advances to customers - - -
Investment Properties - - -
Investment Securities - - =
Property and equipment - 8,464,000 (8,464.000)
Employees' defined benefit plan 14.728.859 - 14,728,859
Lease liabilities 8,840,524 - 8,840,524
Provisions 2 = =
Other temporary differences - - -
Deferred Tax on Temporary differences 23,569,383 8,464,000 15,105,384

Deferred Tax on carry forward of unused tax losses .
Deferred tax due to changes n tax rate -

Net Defered tax asset/(liabilities) as on year end of 2080-81 15,105,384

Deferred tax(asset)/liabilities as on shrawanl, 2081 12,610,484

Origination/(Reversal) during the year 2,494,900
Deferred tax expense/(income) recognised in profit or loss (2,719,106)
Deferred tax expense/(income) recognised in other comprehensive income 224,206

Deferred tax expense/(income) recognised directly in equity

As at 31st Ashadh 2081

Pasticalars Deferred Tax DQ':?]'I:Q-d‘T ax Net Defe!'rel‘:l :l:ax

Assets Liabilities Assets/ (Liabilities)
Deferred Tax on Temporary differences on following items
Loans and advance to MFIs and cooperatives - - -
Loans and Advances to customers - - -
Investment Properties - - -
Investment Securities - - -
Property and equipment - 9,999,475 (9,999,475)
Employees' defined benefit plan 12,593,183 - 12,593,183
Lease liabilities 10,016,775 - 10,016,775
Provisions - - -
Other temporary differences - - -
Deferred Tax on Temporary differences 22,609,959 9,999,475 12,610484

Deferred Tax on carry forward of unused tax losses -
Deferred tax due to changes in tax rate -

Net Defered tax asset/(liabilities) as on year end of 2080-81 12,610,484

Deferred tax(asset)/liabilities as on shrawanl, 2080 8.946,956
| Origination/(Reversal) during the year 3,663,528
Deferred tax expense/(income) recognised in profit or loss (3,728,026)
Deferred tax expense/(income) recognised in other comprehensive income 64,498

Deferred tax expense/(income) recognised directly in equity

Tewreas wgfaw fasi wwan fafwes
Himalayan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited
i g e+ Wi AT i B e

A Subsidiary company of Himalayan Bank Limited




iy ot miee gD

AT, 9. Rotq/C¥

Note No. 4.14
Other Assets

Figures in NPR

Parkicilng As at 32nd As at 31st
Ashadh 2082 Ashadh 2081
Assets held for sale - -
Other Non-Banking Assets - -
Bills Receivable - -
Accounts receivable 822,778 5,346,644
Accrued income - -
Prepayments and deposits 2,325,016 2,756,077
Income tax deposit - -
Deferred Employee Expenditure 5,587,921 3,902,835
Other - -
Fixed Deposits for CPF 14,647,907 15,455,465
Stationery Stock 1,434,265 1,044,277
Total 24,817,889 28,505,297
Note:4.15
Due to Bank and financial institution Figures in NPR
As at 32nd As at 31st
Particulars Ashadh 2082 Ashadh 2081
Borrowing from BFIs - -
Settlement and clearing accounts - -
Other - -
Total - -
Note:4.16
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank Figures in NPR
As at 32nd As at 31st

Particulars

Ashadh 2082

Ashadh 2081

Refinance from NRB

Standing liquidity facility

Lender of last resort facilty from NRB
Securities sold under repurchase agreement
Other payable to NRB

Total

Note:4.17
Derivative financial instruments

Figures in NPR

Particulars

As at 32nd
Ashadh 2082

As at 31st
Ashadh 2081

Held for trading
Interest rate swap
Currency swap
Forward exchange contract
Others

Held for risk management
Interest rate swap
Currency swap
Forward exchange contract
Others

Total

fersrerre sgfe
Himalayan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited
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Note:4.18
Deposits from Customers Figures in NPR
As at 32nd As at 31st
Particulars Ashadh 2082 Ashadh 2081
Institutions Customers:
Term deposits - -
Call Deposits - -
Other - -
Sub total: - -
Individual Customers:
Term deposits - -
Saving Deposits 358,795,898 284,907,325
Saving from members 745,955,004 619,372,190
Other - -
Sub total: 1,104,750,903 904,279,515
Total 1,104,750,903 904,279,515
Note:4.19
Borrowing Figures in NPR
As at 32nd As at 31st
Particulars Ashadh 2082 Ashadh 2081
Domestic Borrowing:
Nepal Government - -
Other licensed institution 3.828,103,650 2,602,697,955
Other - -
Sub total 3,828,103,650 2,602,697,955
Foreign Borrowing:
Foreign Bank and Financial Institutions - -
Multilateral Development Bank - -
Other institutions - -
Sub total - -
Total 3,828,103,650 2,602,697,955
Note:4.20
Provisions Figures in NPR
. As at 32nd As at 31st
Ashadh 2082 Ashadh 2081
Provisions for redundancy - -
Provision for restructuring - -
Pending legal issues and tax litigation - -
Onerous contract - -
Other - -
Total - -
Note:4.20.1
Movement in provision Figures in NPR
Particulars As at 32nd As at 31st
Ashadh 2082 Ashadh 2081

Balance at shrawan 1st
Provisions made during the year
Provisions used during the year
Provisions reversed during the year
Unwind of discount

Balance at Ashadh End

y  fewmeT saf fa we fafres
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Note:4.21
Other liabilities Figures in NPR
As at 32nd As at 31st
Particulars Ashadh 2082 Ashadh 2081
Liability for employees defined benefit obligations 31,889,096 24,628,160
Liability for long-service leave 23,447,982 17.349.118
Short-term employee benefits 1,139,429 402,753
Bills payable - -
Creditors and Accruals 22,800,394 14,274 235
Interest payable on deposit 75,626,997 69,177,252
Interest payable on borrowing 7,255,708 6,620,293
Liabilities on deferred grant income = =
Unpaid Dividend - -
Liabilities under finance lease - -
Employee Bonus payable 11,911,140 227,208
Service Charge Payable 15,988 4,114,155
Other - -
Payable (o members - -
Lease Liabilities 29,468,414 33,389,251
Other Liabilities 5,725,490 888,232
Total 209,280,637 171,070,656
Note:4.21.1
Defined benefit obligaation Figures in NPR
As at 32nd As at 31st
Particulars Ashadh 2082 Ashadh 2081
Present value of unfunded obligations 31,889,096 24,628,160
Present value of funded obligations & =
Total present value of obligations 31,889,096 24,628,160
Fair value of plan assets - -
Present value of net obligations 31,889,096 24.628.160
Recognised liability for defined benefit obligation 31,889,096 24,628,160
Note:4.21.2
Plan Assets Figures in NPR
As at 32nd As at 31st
Particulars Ashadh 2082 Ashadh 2081
Equity securities - -
Government bonds - -
Bank deposits - -
Other - -
Total - -
Note:4.21.3
Movement in the present value of defined benefit obligations PR TRaE
As at 32nd As at 31st
Particulars Ashadh 2082 Ashadh 2081
Defined benefit obligation at shrawan 1st 24,628,160 17.729,938
Actuarial losses (747,353.00) (214,993)
Benefit paid by the plan (847.473.00) (722,594)
Current service cost and interest 8.855.762 7.835.809
Defined benefit obligation at Ashadh end 31,889,096 24,628,160
femmeaw Fafaw o dwn fafree
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Note:4.21.4
Movement in the fair value of plan assets Figures in NPR
As at 32nd As at 31st
Particulars Ashadh 2082 Ashadh 2081
Fair value of plan assets at shrawan 1st - -
Contributions paid into the plan - -
Benefit paid during the year - -
Actuarial (losses) gains - -
Expected return on plan assets - -
Fair value of plan assets at Ashadh end - -
Note:4.21.5
Amount recognised in profit or loss Figures in NPR
As at 32nd As at 31st
Particulars Ashadh 2082 Ashadh 2081
Current service cost 6,523.580.00 6,152.671.00
Interest on obligation 2.332.182.00 1,683,138.00
Expected return on plan assets - -
Total 8,855,762 7,835,809
Note:4.21.6
Amount recognised in other comprehensive income Figures in NPR
As at32nd As at 31st
Particulars Ashadh 2082 Ashadh 2081
Acturial (gain)/loss (747,353) (214,993)
Total (747,353) (214,993)
Note:4.21.7
Actuarial assumptions Figures in NPR
As at 32nd As at 31st
Particulars Ashadh 2082 Ashadh 2081
Discount rate 7.00% 10.00%
Expected return on plan assets - -
Future salary increase 4.00% 6.50%
Withdrawal rate - -
Note:4.22
Debt securities issued Figures in NPR
As at 32nd As at 31st
Particulars Ashadh 2082 Ashadh 2081
Debt securities issued designated at fair value through profit or loss - -
Debt securitics issued at amortised cost - -
Total - -
Note:4.23
Subordinated liabilities Figures in NPR
As at 32nd As at 31st
Particulars Ashadh 2082 Ashadh 2081

Redeemable preference shares
Irredemable cummulative preference shares(liabilities component)

Other

Total

B Himalayan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited
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Note:4.24
Share capital Figures in NPR
Particulars As at 32nd Ashadh 2082 As at 31st Ashadh 2081
Ordinary shares 319,818,130 319.818,130
Convetible preference share(Equity component)
Irredemable preference share(Equity component)
Perpetual debt(Equity component only)
Total 319,818,130 319,818,130
Note:4.24.1
Ordinary shares Figures in NPR
Particulars As at 32nd Ashadh 2082 As at 31st Ashadh 2081
Authorized capital:
4,000,000 Ordinary Shares of Rs. 100 each 400,000,000 400,000,000
Issued capital:
3,198,181.3 Ordinary Shares of Rs. 100 each 319,818,130 319,818,130
Subscribed and paid up capital:
3,198,181.3 Ordinary Shares of Rs. 100 each 319,818,130 319,818,130
Total 319,818,130 319,818,130
Note:4.24.2
Ordinary share ownership Figures in NPR
As at 32nd Ashadh 2082 As at 31st Ashadh 2081

Particulars Percent Amount Percent Amount
Domestic ownership(promoter)

Nepal Government

"A" class licensed institutions 51% 163,107,246 51% 163,107.246

Other licensed institutions

Other institutions

Other
Domestic ownership(public)

Nepal Government

"A" class licensed institution

Other licensed institutions

Other mstitutions

Other 49% 156.710.884 49%, 156,710,884
Foreign ownership Promoter
Foreign ownership public
Total 100%a 319,818,130 100% 319,818,130
Note:4.25
Reserves Figures in NPR
Particulars As at 32nd Ashadh 2082 | AS#t31st Ashadh 2081
Statutory General Reserve 53,845,182 39.552.694
Restructured Loan Writeback Reserve - 1.967.141
Exchange equalization reserve - -
Investment adjustment reserve - -
Corporate social responsibility reserve 737,854 67.469
Client protection Fund 15,427.734 14,266,226
Capital redemption reserve - &
Regulatory reserve 50,236,858 39.100.425
Assets revaluation reserve - -
Fair value reserve - -
Dividend equalization reserve - -
Actuarial reserve 2,731,026 2,207.879
Special reserve - -
Debenture redemption reserve - -
Other reserve - Employee Traming Fund 1.016.820 =
Total 123,995,475 97,161,835

Himalayan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited
Tt 1y B cw b s s fiefe e
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Note No. 4.26
Contingent Liabilities and Commitment Figures m NPR
Particulars As at 32nd Ashadh 2082 As at 31st Ashadh 2081

Contingent Liabilities " -
Undrawn and undisbursed facilities - -
Capital commitment : =
Iease commitment = -
Litigation - =
others 7 o

Total - -

Note No. 4.26.1

Capital commitments Figures in NPR
Capital expenditure approved by relevant authority of the bank but provision has not been made in financial statements
Particulars As at 32nd Ashadh 2082 As at 31st Ashadh 2081

Capital commitments in relation to Property and Equipment
Approved and contracted for - -
Approved but not contracted for - -
Sub Total - -
Capital commitments in relation to Intangible assets
Approved and contracted for = #
Approved but not contracted for - -
Sub Total - -
Total - -

Note No. 4.26.2
Lease Commitments Figures in NPR
Particulars As at 32nd Ashadh 2082 As at 31st Ashadh 2081

Operating lease commitments
Future minimum lease payment under non cancellable operating lease, where
the bank is lessee
Not later than 1 year - -
Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years - -
Later than 5 years - -
Sub Total - -
Finance lease commitments
Future minimum lease payment under non cancellable operating lease, where
the bank is lessee
Not later than 1 year - -
Later than [ year but not later than 5 years - -
Later than 5 years - -
Sub Total ~ -
Grand Total - -

Note No. 4.26.3
Litigation Figures in NPR
Explanatory paragraphs are required for litigation contingent liabilities as per their own case of each institution

Particulars As at 32nd Ashadh 2082 As at 31st Ashadh 2081

Total

Tewreas wgfaw fasi wwan fafwes
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Note: 4.27
Interest income Figures in NPR
Purticadass For the Year ended For the Year ended
32nd Ashadh 2082 31st Ashadh 2081
Cash and cash equivalents 638,777 1,134,261
Due from Nepal Rastra Bank -
Placement with Banks and Financial Institutions -
Loans and Advances to Financial Institutions -
Loans and advances to customers 672,098,656 613,449,644
Investment securities
Loans and advances to staff 645,647 907,664
Other
Total interest income 673,383,079 615,491,569
Note: 4.28
Interest expense Figures in NPR
Pirealars For the Year ended For the Year ended
32nd Ashadh 2082 31st Ashadh 2081
Due to Bank and Financial Institutions -
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank -
Deposits from customers 77,728,348 73,441,898
Borrowing 224,760,502 319,322,590
Debt securities issued -
Subordinated liabilities -
Other -
Total interest expense 302,488,850 392,764,488
Note: 4.29
Fees and Commission Income Figures in NPR
Partivalsis For the Year ended For the Year ended
32nd Ashadh 2082 31st Ashadh 2081
Loan Administration fees -
Service fees 48,697,355 35,277,305
Commitment fees -
Card Issuance fees -
pepayment and swap fees -
Remittance fees -
Brokerage fees -
Other Fees and Commission Income 5,275,849 10,657,690
Total Fees and Commission Income 53.973.204 45,934,995

Note: 4.30
Fees and commission expense Figures in NPR
Particulars For the Year ended For the Year ended
32nd Ashadh 2082 31st Ashadh 2081
Brokerage - -
ATM management fees - E
VISA/Master card fees - .
Guarantee commission - -
Brokerage - -
DD/TT/Swift fees - -
Remittance fees and commission - -
Other Fees and Commission Expense 958,693 2,466,600
Total Fees and Commission Expense 958,693 2,466,600
femmeaw Fafaw o dwn fafree
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Figures in NPR

Particulars

For the Year ended
32nd Ashadh 2082

For the Year ended
31st Ashadh 2081

Changes in fair value of trading assets
Gain/loss on disposal of trading assets
Interest income on trading assets
Dividend income on trading assets
Gain/Loss Foreign Exchange Transaction
Other

Total Net trading income

Note: 4.32
Other operating income

Figures in NPR

Particulars

For the Year ended
32nd Ashadh 2082

For the Year ended
J1st Ashadh 2081

Foreign Exchange Revaulation Gam
Gain/loss on sale of investment Securities
Fair value gain/loss on investment property
Dividend on equity instruments

Gain/loss on sale of property and equipment
Gain/loss on sale of investment property
Operating lease income

Gain/loss on sale of gold and silver

Other

Total other operating income

Note: 4.33
Impairment charge/(reversal) for loan and other losses

Figures in NPR

Particulars

For the Year ended
32nd Ashadh 2082

For the Year ended
J1st Ashadh 2081

Impairment charge/(reversal) on loan and advances to B/FIs

Impairment charge/(reversal) on loan and advances to customer 38,228,954 24,330,115
Impairment charge/(reversal) on financial Investment - -
Impairment charge/(reversal) on placement with bank and financial
institutions : )
Impairment charge/(reversal) on property and equipment - -
Impairment charge/(reversal) on goodwill and intangible assets - .
Impairment charge/(reversal) on investment property - -
Total impairment charge/(reversal) for loan and other losses 38,228,954 24,330,115
Note: 4.34
Personnel Expense Figures in NPR
Particulars For the Year ended | For the Year ended
32nd Ashadh 2082 | 31st Ashadh 2081
Salary 85,010,766 79.262.406
Allowances 64,733 852 60,310,275
Gratuity expenses 8,855,762 7.835,809
Provident fund 8,500,141 7,926,401
Uniform 2,940,000 2.780,000
Training & Development Expense 3,253,760 4.285.707
Leave encashment 11,656,491 9.475,743
Medical - -
Insurance 1,019,750 930,751
Employees Incentive = %
Cash-settled share-based payments - -
Pension Expense - -
Voluntary Resignation scheme - -
Finance expenses under NFRS - -
Other Expenses Related to Staff 37,000 60,000
Sub-Total 186,007,523 172,867,092
Employees Bonus 11,707,582 -
Total personnel expenses 197,715,104 172,867,092

Tewreas wgfaw fasi wwan fafwes
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Note: 4.35

Other operating expense Figure in NPR
Particulars For the Year ended For the Year ended
32nd Ashadh 2082 31st Ashadh 2081
Directors' fee 654,000 603,000
Directors' expense 165,513 158,245
Auditors' remuneration 734,500 734,500
Other audit related expense 668,769 472214
Professional and legal expense 360,552 81,752
Office administration expense 61,452,502 52,035,513
Operating lease expense 347,018 28,368
Operating expense of investment properties - "
Corporate Social Responsibility Expense - 336,715
Client Protection expense + -
Onerous lease provision - -
Other 53,598 123,012
Total other operating expense 64,436,452 54,573,319
Note No 4.35.1
Office Administration Expenses Figures in NPR
Particulars For the Year ended For the Year ended
32nd Ashadh 2082 31st Ashadh 2081
Water and electricity 954,942 903,078
Repair and maintenance
(a) Building - -
(b) Vehicle 457.766 412,121
(c) Computer and accessories 293,170 260,090
(d) Office equipment and furniture 52,695 59,840
(e) Other 3,250,663 1,778,732
Insurance 1,186,840 E111775
Postage, telex, telephone. fax 2,930,583 2.425,405
Printing and stationery 3,163,479 2,878,944
News paper, books and journals 12,390 13,300
Advertisement 659.790 894,940
Donation - -
Security expense - -
Deposit and loan guarantee premium 19.001.984 12,373,895
Travel allowance and expense 1,654,409 8,279,999
Office Expenses 467,994 303,558
Annual/special general meeting expense 526,107 399,931
Other . -
Website - -
Soltware AMC 474,732 493,440
Duties and Taxes 1,101,697 92,865
Fuel Expenses 8,368,624 4,187,428
Office Consumables 494 599 721.477
Annual Day Celeration Expenses 454,300 455,560
Registration and renewal 1,307,457 1,144,674
Interest unwinding of lease liabilities 3,505,871 1,918,218
Share Register expenses = 399 898
Other Casual Labor Wages 11,132,410 10,526,344
Wellare expenses - -
Others - -
Total 61,452,502 52,035,513
Note: 4.36
Depreciation & Amortisation Figures in NPR
Pritliilaie For the Year ended For the Year ended
32nd Ashadh 2082 31st Ashadh 2081
Depreciation on Property and Equipment 17,997,816 17,513,703
Depreciation on investment property -
Amortisation ol intangible assets 124,372 415,853
Total depreciation and amortisation 18,122,188 17,929,557
femmeaw Fafaw o dwn fafree
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Non operating income
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Figures in NPR

Particulars For the Year ended For the Year ended
32nd Ashadh 2082 31st Ashadh 2081
Recovery of loan written off - -
other income - 14,721
Total non operating income - 14,721
Note: 4.38
Non Operating Expense Figures in NPR
Particalars For the Year ended For the Year ended
32nd Ashadh 2082 31st Ashadh 2081
Loan Written Off - -
Redundancy provision - -
Expenses of restructuring - -
Other expense 37,808 49829
Total non operating Expenses 37,808 49,829

Note: 4.39
Income tax expense

Figures in NPR

For the Year ended

For the Year ended

i 32nd Ashadh 2082 |  31st Ashadh 2081
Current tax expense 36.624,898 2.196,022
Current year 36,624 898 2,190,678
Adjustment for prior years - 5,344
Deferred tax expense (2,719,106) (3,728,026)
Origination and reversal of temporary differences (2,719,100) (3,728,026)
Changes in tax rate - -
Recognition of previously unrecognised tax losses - -
Total income tax expense 33,905,792 (1,532,004)
Note: 4.39.1
Reconciliation of tax expense and accounting profit Figures in NPR
Dot For the Year ended For the Year ended
32nd Ashadh 2082 31st Ashadh 2081
Profit before tax 105,368,235 (3.539,715)
Tax amount al tax rate of 30% 31610470 (1.061,915)
Add: Tax effect of expenses that are not deductible for tax purpose - -
Less: Tax effect on exempt income B B
Add/less: Tax effect on other items 5,014,428 3,257,936
Total Income Tax Expense 36,624,898 2,196,022
Effective tax rate 34.76% -62.04%

Tewreas wgfaw fasi wwan fafwes
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Core Capital

(Rs. In '"000)

A.
S.

No.

Period

Description

Current

Previous

00 ~1 & h B W =

o

10
11

Paid up Capital (ordinary shares)
Proposed bonus share

Share premium

Irredeemable preferential share
General Reserve Fund
Accumulated profit/(loss)

Profit & loss a/c as per balance-sheet
Capital Redemption Reserve Fund
Capital Adjustment Fund

Calls in advance

Other Free Reserves

319.818.13

45,543.05

53,845.18
38,651.24

319,818.13

45,543.05

39,552.69
(6,546.04)

Deductions:

mm = o oo oo

=

Goodwill
Deferred tax assets

Investment on shares and securities in excess of limits
Investment to the company having financial interests
Fictitious Asset

the Directives of NRB

excess of limits

Underwriting share not sold within the stipulated time
Credit and other facilities banned by the prevailing laws

15.,105.38

12,610.48

Total Core Capital (A)

442,752.22

385,757.35

Supplementary capital

B
S.No.

Period

Description

Current

Previous

L R

6
7

Provisions of loan loss made for pass loan

Additional loan loss provision

Hybrid capital instruments

Unsecured Subordinated Term Debt

Exchange Equalization Fund

Assets revaluation Fund (max. 2% of Supplementary capital
is added automatically)

Investment adjustment Fund

11370.74
69.15

22915.11
21,428.33

Total Supplementary Capital (B)

11,439.89

44,343.45

C. | Total Capital Fund (A+B)

454,192.10

430,100.80

Minimum capital Fund to be maintained based on Risk W

eighted Assets:

Minimum Capital Fund Required (8.0 % of RWA)

425,672.11

321,340.55

Minimum Core Capital Required (4.0 % of RWA)

212,836.06

160,670.28

Capital Fund maintained ( in %)

8.54%

10.71%

ES) V%) IS N =

8.32%

Core Capital maintained (in %)

9.60%
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A. On-Balance-sheet Items (Rs. in '000)
Mo [Description Weight (%) Current period Previous period
Amount RWA Amount RWA

1 |Cash Balance 0 497.96 - 351.45 -
2 |Gold (Tradable) 0 - - - -
3 |NRB Balance 0 24,000.00 - 23,000.00 -
4 |Investment to Govt. Bond 0 - - - -
5 |Investment to NRB Bond 0 - B - -
6 |Loan against Own FD 0 - - - -
7 |Loan against Govt. Bond 0 - - - 2
8 |Accrued interests on Govt. 0 - - - -

Investment to Youth and Small
9  |Entrepreneurs Self-

employment Fund 0 - - - -
10 Balance on domestic banks and

financial institutions 20 638,089.48 127,617.90 277,663.17 55,532.63
. Loan against other banks' and

financial institutions' FD 20 - - - -
12 |Foreign bank balance 20 - - - -
13 |Money at call 20 - - - -
14 Loan against internationally

rated bank guarantee 20 - - - -
5 Investment to internationally

rated Banks 20 - - - -
16 |Inter-bank lending 20 - - - -
17 Investment on

shares/debentures/bonds 100 1.200.00 1.200.00 - -
18 |Other investments 100 14,647.91 14,647.91 - -
19 Loans & advances, bills

purchase/discount 100 4,948,342.16 4,948,342.16 3,775911.42 3,775,911.42
20 |Fixed assets 100 45,774.07 45,774.07 47,534.98 47.534.98
3 Nel interest receivables (Total

IR - 8 - Interest supsense) 100 59,746.52 59,746.52 42.,047.53 42,047.53
22 |Net Non-Banking Assel 100 - - - -
23 Other assets (Except advance

" |tax payment) 100 10,169.98 10,169 98 13,049 83 13,049 83

2 Real estate/residential housing

loans exceeding the limits 150 -

Total On-Balance-sheet

Items (A) 5,742,468.07 5,207,498.53 4,179,558.39 3,934,076.40
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B. Off-Balance-sheet Items

S.No. |Description Weight (%) Current period Previous period
Amount RWA Amount RWA

1 IBills collection 0 - = £ .
2 |Forward foreign exchange 10 - - S =
% L/C with maturity less than six
" |months (Outstanding value) 20 - - . "
4 Guarantee against International

rated bank's counter guarantee 20 - - & =
5 L/C with maturity more than

six months (Outstanding value) 50 = 5 - "
6 Bid bond, performance bond

and underwriting 50 - - = =

Loan sale with repurchase
7

agreement 50 - - - -
8 |Advance payment guarantee 100 - - = -
9 |Financial and other guarantee 100 < = = =

Itrevocable loan commitment 100 - - = s
11 [Possible liabilities for income 100 - - - -
12 All types of possible liabilities

including acceptance 100 u < i i
13 [Rediscounted bills 100 - - = »
14 Unpaid portion of partly paid

share investment 100 - - = =
15 |Unpaid guarantee claims 200 - - = =

Amount to be maintained for
16 [|operational risk (2% of Total

Assets) 100 113,402.86 113,402.86 82,695.28 82,695.28

Total Off-Balance-sheet

Items (B) 113,402.86 113,402.86 82.695.28 82.695.28

Total Risk Weighted Assets

(A) + (B) 5,855,870.93 5,320,901.39 4,262,253.67 4,016,771.68
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Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to the Accounts

1  Reporting Entity

Himalayan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited (‘the Microfinance') is domiciled and incorporated
in Nepal under then Bank and Financial Institution Act, 2063 on lst Chaitra 2067 (15th March
2011). The company received the national level business operating license from Nepal Rastra Bank
to conduct micro-finance activities as a ‘D’ class financial institution on 7th Baisakh 2069 (19th
April 2012). The company started its operations on 21st Ashad, 2069 (5th July 2012). The company
has its registered central office at Chabahil, Kathmandu, Nepal. The microfinance is operating as a
D Class licensed financial institution as per Bank and Financial Institution Act, 2073. The
Microfinance is a limited liability company having its shares listed on Nepal Stock Exchange with
trading code “HLBSL” after issuing its shares to the general public in Fiscal Year 2071/72. The
microfinance is a subsidiary of Himalayan Bank Limited.

During this fiscal year, the microfinance is serving through 75 total branches located all over the
seven provinces. With the aim of improving access to financial services of the poor and
marginalized women members, promoting a culture of saving, encouraging income generation,
supporting micro-enterprises development and providing social security services to its member the
microfinance is serving 79,741 Households through its 75 branches till the end of this fiscal year.

Being D Class licensed institution, major activities of the microfinance include deprived sector
lending under the group guarantee without collateral in order to enhance economic and social
factors of the members. Also, the microfinance provides microenterprise loan (collateral loan) to
its members within the limit as prescribed by Nepal Rastra Bank from time to time. The major
sources of fund are savings from members along with loan from other BFls and Equity holders’
fund.

The Authorized Capital of the company is Rupees 400,000,000.00 and the Issued Capital is
319,818,130.18 of the paid-up capital, 51 percent is held by the promoter and remaining 49 percent
is held by the general public.

S. No. Ownership Percent

1 Promoter Shares 51

2 Ordinary Shares 49
Total 100

2 Basis of Preparation

The financial statements of the Microfinance have been prepared on accrual basis of accounting
except the Cash flow information which is prepared, on a cash basis, using the Direct method. The
interest income is recognized on coupon interest rate on principal outstanding for all Financial
Assets falling under Stage | and Stage 2 and Cash Basis for Stage 3 Financial Assets.(Guidance
Note on Interest Income Recognition, 2025)

The financial statements comprise the Statement of Financial Position, Statement of Profit or Loss
and Statement of Other Comprehensive Income shown in two separate statements, the Statement
of Changes in Equity, the Statement of Cash Flows and the Notes to the Accounts. The significant
accounting policies applied in the preparation of financial statements are set out below in point
number 3. These policies are consistently applied to all the years presented, except for the changes
in accounting policies disclosed specifically.

2.1 Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting
Standards (NFRS) adopted by the Accounting Standards Board (ASB) of Nepal, pronounced by
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The Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal (ICAN) and as per the directives no. 4 of Unified
Directives, 2079 issued by Nepal Rastra Bank (NRB).

The financial statements have been prepared on the going-concern basis.

The Company presents its statement of financial position broadly in order of liquidity. An
sanalysis regarding recovery or settlement within twelve months after the reporting date (current)
and more than twelve months after the reporting date (non-current) is presented in the respective
notes.

2.2 Reporting period and approval of financial statements

Reporting Period is a period from the first day of Shrawan (mid-July) of any year to the last day of
Ashad (mid-July) of the next year as per Nepalese calendar.

The current year period refers to 1% Shrawan 2081 to 32 Ashad 2082 as per Nepalese Calendar
corresponding to 16" July 2024 to 16™ July 2025 as per English Calendar and corresponding
previous year period is 1* Shrawan 2080 to 31* Ashad 2081 as per Nepalese Calendar
corresponding to 17" July 2023 to 15% July 2024 as per English Calendar.

Nepalese Calendar English Calendar
Current Year 2081/82 2024/25
Previous Year 2080/81 2023/24

13 Shrawan 2081 to 16" July 2024 to
Current Year Period 32"Ashadh 2082 16" July 2025

1** Shrawan 2080 to 17" July 2023 to
Previous Year Period 31 Ashadh 2081 15% July 2024

The Financial Statements were authorized for issue by the Board of Directors on 27/11/2025
(English date). The Company prepared its financial statements in accordance with the requirements
of Nepal Financial Reporting Standards. All decimal figure are shown after rounding off as per
standard accounting practice.

2.3 Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements are presented in Nepalese Currency (NPR) (rounded to the nearest Rupee
unless otherwise stated), which is the company’s functional currency. The Microfinance
determines the functional currency and items included in the financial statements are measured
using that functional currency.

2.4  Use of Estimates, assumptions and judgments

The preparation of the Microfinance’s financial statements requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of revenues, expenses,
assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, as well as the disclosure of contingent
liabilities. Management believes that the estimates used in the preparation of the financial
statements are prudent and reasonable Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could
result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities
affected in future periods.

Information about assumptions and estimation that have a significant risk of resulting in a
material adjustment within the next financial year are:

o Key assumptions used in discounted cash flow projections.
e Measurement of defined benefit obligations.
e Provisions, commitments and contingencies.
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Determination of net realizable value.

Determination of useful life of the property, plants and equipment.

Assessment of the Microfinance’s ability to continue as going concern.

Determination of fair value of financial instruments; and property, plant and equipment.
Impairment of financial and non-financial assets.

Assessment of current as well as deferred tax.

Expected Credit Losses

The measurement of impairment losses across the categories of financial assets under Nepal
Financial Reporting Standard - NFRS 9 on “Financial Instruments” (NFRS 9) requires judgement,
in particular, the estimation of the amount and timing of future cash flows and collateral values
when determining impairment losses.

Accordingly, the Microfinance reviews its individually significant loans and advances portfolio at
each reporting date to assess whether an impairment loss is to be recognized in the Income
Statement. In particular, the Management’s judgement is required in the estimation of the amount
and timing of future cash flows when determining the impairment loss. In estimating these cash
flows, Management makes judgements about a borrower’s financial situation and the net realizable
value of any underlying collateral (foreclosure) and expected cash from operations. These estimates
are based on assumptions about a number of factors and hence actual results may differ, resulting
in future changes to the impairment allowance made.

A collective impairment provision is established for:

e  Microfinance’s homogeneous loans and advances that are not considered individually significant;
and

e Assets of microfinance that are individually significant but that were not found to be individually
impaired.

Following NFRS 9, the Microfinance’s Expected Credit Loss (ECL) calculations are outputs of

complex models with a number of underlying assumptions regarding the choice of variable inputs

and their interdependencies. Elements of the Microfinance’s ECL models that arc considered
accounting judgements and estimates include:

e (Criteria for qualitatively assessing whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk
(SICR) and if so, allowances for financial assets measured on a Lifetime Expected Credit Loss
(LT - ECL) basis.

e Secgmentation of financial assets when their ECL is assessed on a collective basis.

e Various statistical formulas and the choice of inputs used in the development of ECL models.

e Associations between macroeconomic inputs, such as GDP growth, inflation, interest rates,
exchange rates and unemployment and the effect of these inputs on Probability of Default (PDs).

e Forward-looking macroeconomic scenarios and their probability weightings.

e Coupon rate of loan has been considered by the Microfinance as effective interest rate.

As such, the accuracy of the impairment provision depends on the model assumptions and parameters
used in determining the ECL calculations.

Further, the Microfinance has assigned weightages for base (normal) case, best case and worst-case
scenarios when assessing the probability weighted forward looking macro-economic indicators.
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2.5

2.6

2.7

2.8

3.1

Changes in Accounting Policies

The Company has consistently applied the accounting policies to all periods presented in these
financial statements except for new or revised statements and interpretations implemented during
the year. The nature and effect of new standards and interpretations are discussed in note that
follows.

New standards in issue but not vet effective

A number of new standards and amendments to the existing standards and interpretations have been
issued by IASB after the pronouncements of NFRS with varying effective dates. Those become
applicable when ASB Nepal incorporates them within NFRS. The standards and interpretations
that are issued. but not yet effective, up to the date of issuance of the Microfinance’s financial
statements are disclosed below. The Microfinance intends to adopt these standards, if applicable,
when they become effective.

A number of new standards and amendments to the existing standards and interpretations have
been issued by IASB after the pronouncements of NFRS with varying effective dates. Those
become applicable when ASB Nepal incorporates them within NFRS.

New Standards and interpretation not adapted

All Nepal Accounting Standards and Nepal Financial Reporting Standards and other interpretation
issued by ASB of Nepal have been adapted while preparing financial statements.

Discounting

Non- current assets and liabilities are discounted where discounting is material.

Significant Accounting Policies

The principal accounting policies applied by the microfinance in the preparation of these financial
statements is presented below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented unless stated otherwise.

Basis of Measurement

The financial statements are prepared on the historical-cost basis except for the following material
items in the statement of financial position:

Investment property is measured at fair value.

Liabilities for cash-settled, share-based-payment arrangements are measured at fair value.
Available for sale financial assets are measured at fair value.

Investments held-for-trade is measured at fair value.

Derivative financial instruments are measured at fair value.

Defined benefit schemes, surpluses and deficits are measured at fair value.

Impairment of asset is measured at fair value and related disposal cost.

femmeaw Fafaw o dwn fafree
Himalayan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited
e vy Bz +u kol garEeare sy fefr s

A Subsidiary company of Himalayan Bank Limited




3.2

3.3

9y 3T arfyw gfedes
AT, 9. Rotq/5¥

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis and are based on historical
experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances. Actual results could differ from those estimates. The estimates
and judgements used in the preparation of the financial statements are continuously evaluated by
the Company. Any revisions to accounting estimates are recognised prospectively in the period in
which the estimates are revised and in the future periods. The areas involving a higher degree of
judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial
statements, are disclosed in notes that follow.

Distinction of Current and Non-Current
Assets

All the assets except the property, plant and equipment, Intangible Assets and deferred tax assets
are classified as current assets unless specific additional disclosure is made in the notes.

Liabilities
All the liabilities except the defined benefit plan obligations are classified as current liabilities
unless specific additional disclosure 1s made in the notes.

Materiality and Aggregation

In compliance with NAS 1 - Presentation of Financial Statements, each material class of similar
items 1s presented separately in the financial Statements. Items of dissimilar nature or functions
are presented separately unless they are material.

Cash and cash equivalent

Cash and cash equivalents include cash at vault and agency bank account balances, unrestricted
balances with NRB, highly liquid financial assets with original maturity of 3 months from the date
of its acquisition and are readily convertible to cash, which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value. Cash and Cash equivalent are measured at amortized cost in the statement of
financial position.

Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared by using the ‘Direct Method’ in accordance with NAS
07- Statement of Cash Flows.

Financial assets and financial liabilities
Recognition

The Microfinance initially recognizes a financial asset or a financial liability in its statement of
financial position when, and only when, it becomes party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. The Microfinance initially recognize loans and advances, deposits; and debt securities/
subordinated liabilities issued on the date that they are originated which is the date that the
Microfinance becomes party to the contractual provisions of the instruments. Investments in equity
instruments, bonds, debenture, Government securities, NRB bond or deposit auction, reverse repos,
outright purchase are recognized on trade date at which the Microfinance commits to purchase/
acquire the financial assets. Regular way purchase and sale of financial assets are recognized on
trade date.
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Classification

1. Financial Assets

The Microfinance classifies the financial assets as subsequently measured at amortized cost or fair
value on the basis of the Microfinance’s business model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial assets. The two classes of financial assets are
as follows:

1. Financial assets measured at amortized cosi

The Microfinance classifies a financial asset measured at amortized cost if both of the
following conditions are met:

a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows and

b) The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

2. Financial asset measured at fair value

Financial assets other than those measured at amortized cost are measured at fair value.
Financial assets measured at fair value are further classified into two categories as below:

a) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets are classified as fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) if they are
held for trading or are designated at fair value through profit or loss. Upon initial
recognition, transaction costs are directly attributable to the acquisition are recognized in
profit or loss as incurred. Such assets are subsequently measured at fair value and
changes in fair value are recognized in Statement of Profit or Loss.

b) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

Investment in an equity instrument that is not held for trading and at the initial
recognition, the Microfinance makes an irrevocable election that the subsequent changes
in fair value of the instrument is to be recognized in other comprehensive income are
classified as financial assets at fair value though other comprehensive income. Such
assets are subsequently measured at fair value and changes in fair value are recognized
in other comprehensive income.

il. Financial Liabilities

The Microfinance classifies the financial liabilities as follows:
a) Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities are classified as fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) if they are
held for trading or are designated at fair value through profit or loss. Upon initial
recognition, transaction cost is directly attributable to the acquisition are recognized in
Statement of Profit or Loss as incurred. Subsequent changes in fair value are recognized
at profit or loss.

b) Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost
All financial liabilities other than measured at fair value though profit or loss are
classified as subsequently measured at amortized cost using effective interest method.

Measurement
Financial assets at FVTOCI

On initial recognition, the Company can make an irrevocable election (on an instrument-by
instrument basis) to present the subsequent changes in fair value in other comprehensive income
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pertaining to investments in equity instruments. This election is not permitted if the equity
investment is held for trading. These elected investments are initially measured at fair value plus
transaction costs. Subsequently, they are measured at fair value with gains and losses arising from
changes in fair value recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the ‘Reserve
for equity instruments through other comprehensive income’. The cumulative gain or loss is not
reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss on disposal of the investments.

A financial asset is held for trading if:

it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling it in the near term; or
on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the
Company manages together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

e it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument or a financial
guarantee.

Dividends on these investments in equity instruments are recognised in Statement of Profit and
Loss when the Company’s right to receive the dividends is established, it is probable that the
economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the entity, the dividend does not
represent a recovery of part of cost of the investment and the amount of dividend can be measured
reliably. Dividends recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss are included in the ‘Other income’
line item.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Investments in equity instruments are classified as at FVTPL, unless the Company irrevocably
elects on initial recognition to present subsequent changes in fair value in other comprehensive
income for investments in equity instruments which are not held for trading.

Debt instruments that do not meet the amortised cost criteria or FVTOCI criteria (see above) are
measured at FVTPL. In addition, debt instruments that meet the amortised cost criteria or the
FVTOCI criteria but are designated as at FVTPL are measured at FVTPL.

A financial asset that meets the amortised cost criteria or debt instruments that meet the FVTOCI
criteria may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if such designation eliminates or
significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that would arise from measuring
assets or liabilities or recognising the gains and losses on them on different bases.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period, with any
gains or losses arising on re-measurement recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss. The net gain
or loss recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss incorporates any dividend or interest earned on
the financial asset and is included in the ‘Other income’ line item. Dividend on financial assets at
FVTPL is recognised when the Company’s right to receive the dividends is established, it is
probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the entity, the
dividend does not represent a recovery of part of cost of the investment and the amount of dividend
can be measured reliably.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability is held for trading or is
designated as at FVTPL.

A [inancial liability is classified as held for trading if:

¢ it has been incurred principally for the purpose of repurchasing it in the near term; or

e on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the
Company manages together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

e itis a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument
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A financial liability other than a financial liability held for trading may be designated as at FVTPL
upon initial recognition if:

e such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition
inconsistency that would otherwise arise;

e the financial liability forms part of a company of financial assets or financial liabilities or both,
which is managed and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with
the Company’s documented risk management or investment strategy, and information about
the Company is provided internally on that basis; or

e it forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded derivatives, and NFRS 9 permits
the entire combined contract to be designated as at FVTPL in accordance with NFRS 9.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on re-
measurement recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss. The net gain or loss recognized in
Statement of Profit and Loss incorporates any interest paid on the financial liability and is included
in the *Other income’ line item.

However, for non-held-for-trading financial liabilities that are designated as at FVTPL, the amount
of change in the fair value of the financial liability that is attributable to changes in the credit risk
of that liability is recognised in other comprehensive income, unless the recognition of the effects
of changes in the liability’s credit risk in other comprehensive income would create or enlarge an
accounting mismatch in profit or loss, in which case these effects of changes in credit risk are
recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss. The remaining amount of change in the fair value of
liability is always recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss. Changes in fair value attributable to
a financial liability’s credit risk that are recognised in other comprehensive income are reflected
immediately in retained earnings and are not subsequently reclassified to Statement of Profit and
Loss.

Financial liabilities subsequently measured at amortised cost

Financial liabilities that are not held-for-trading and are not designated as at FVTPL are measured
at amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting periods. The carrying amounts of financial
liabilities that are subsequently measured at amortised cost are determined based on the effective
interest method. Interest expense that is not capitalised as part of costs of an asset is included in the
‘Finance costs’ line item.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability
and of allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability, or (where appropriate) a shorter period, to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

De-recognition
i.  De-recognition of financial assets

The Microfinance derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from
the financial asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset in a transaction in which
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which
the Microfinance neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
and it does not retain control of the financial asset.

Any interest in such transferred financial assets that qualify for de-recognition that is created or
retained by the Microfinance is recognized as a separate asset or liability. On de-recognition of a
financial asset, the difference between the carrying amount of the asset, and the sum of

(1) The consideration received and
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(i1) Any cumulative gain or loss that had been recognized in other comprehensive income is
recognized in Statement of Profit or Loss.

The Microfinance enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognized on its Statement
of Financial Position, but retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the
transferred assets or a portion of them. If all or substantially all risks and rewards are retained, then
the transferred assets are not derecognized. Transfers of assets with retention of all or substantially
all risks and rewards include, for example repurchase transactions.

ii.  De-recognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expired. Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a de-recognition of the original liability
and the recognition of a new liability. The difference between the carrying value of the original
financial liability and the consideration paid is recognized in Statement of Profit or Loss.

Determination of fair value

‘Fair value’ is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability (exit
price) in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date in the principal
or, in its absence, the most advantageous market to which the Microfinance has access at that date.
The fair value of a liability reflects its non-performance risk.

When available, the Microfinance measures the fair value of an instrument using the quoted price
in an active market for that instrument. A market is regarded as active if transactions for the asset
or liability take place with sufficient frequency and volume to provide pricing information on an
ongoing basis. If there is no quoted price in an active market, then the Microfinance uses valuation
techniques that maximize the use of relevant observable inputs and minimize the use of
unobservable inputs. The chosen valuation technique incorporates all of the factors that market
participants would consider in pricing a transaction.

The fair value measurement hierarchy is as follows:

Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived from unadjusted quoted prices in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 valuations are those with quoted prices for similar instruments in active markets or quoted
prices for identical or similar instruments in inactive markets and financial instruments valued using
models where all significant inputs are observable.

Level 3 portfolios are those where there are unobservable inputs of the instruments. The inputs are
not based on observable market data.

The best evidence of the fair value of a financial instrument at initial recognition is normally the
transaction price i.e., the fair value of the consideration given or received. If the Microfinance
determines that the fair value at initial recognition differs from the transaction price and the fair
value is evidenced neither by a quoted price in an active market for an identical asset or liability
(Level 01 valuation) nor based on a valuation technique that uses only data from observable markets
(Level 02 valuation), then the financial instrument is initially measured at fair value, adjusted to
defer the difference between the fair value at initial recognition and the transaction price.
Subsequently, that difference is recognized in profit or loss on an appropriate basis over the life of
the instrument but not later than when the valuation is wholly supported by observable market data
or the transaction is closed out. In case the fair value is evidenced by a quoted price in an active
market for an identical asset or liability (Level 01 valuation), the difference between the transaction
price and fair value is recognized in profit or loss immediately.

Himalayan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited
Irame wre Swar <o wleEr ey engfion e ey
A Subsidiary company of Himalayan Bank Limited




iy ot miee gD

AT. 9. Rot9/GR

Impairment

At each reporting date, the Microfinance assesses whether there is objective evidence that a
financial asset or group of financial assets not carried at fair value through profit or loss are
impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired when objective evidence
demonstrates that a loss event has occurred after the initial recognition of the asset(s), and that the
loss event has an impact on the future cash flows of the asset(s) that can be estimated reliably.

Objective evidence that financial assets are impaired can include significant financial difficulty of
the borrower or issuer, default or delinquency by a borrower, restructuring of a loan or advance by
the Microfinance on terms that the Microfinance would not otherwise consider, indications that a
borrower or issuer will enter bankruptey, the disappearance of an active market for a security, or
other observable data relating to a group of assets such as adverse changes in the payment status of
borrowers or issuers in the Microfinance, or economic conditions that correlate with defaults in the
Microfinance. In addition, for an investment in an equity security, a significant or prolonged decline
in its fair value below its cost is objective evidence of impairment.

In case of financial difficulty of the borrower, the Microfinance considers to restructure loans rather
than take possession of collateral. This may involve extending the payment arrangements and
agreement of new loan conditions. Once the terms have been renegotiated, any impairment is
measured using the original EIR as calculated before the modification of terms and the loan is no
longer considered past due. Management continually reviews renegotiated loans to ensure that all
criteria are met and that future payments are likely to occur. The loans continue to be subject to an
individual or collective impairment assessment, calculated using the loan’s original EIR.

Impairment of financial assets measured at amortized cost

During the year FY 2081/82, The Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal (ICAN) and
Accounting Standards Board of Nepal (ASB Nepal) has pronounced that full version of NFRS 9
containing Expected Credit Loss (ECL) to be effective from Shrawan 1st, 2081 and financial
statements of Ashad end 2082 (including quarterly financials thereon) incorporates ECL reporting.
In relation to the same, “NFRS 9 — Expected Credit Loss Related Guidelines, 2024 was pronounced
by the Bank and Financial Institution regulation department of Nepal Rastra Bank on Jestha Ist
2081, providing detailed guidelines for the consistent and prudent application of NFRS 9.

Initially, the updated standard of NFRS 9: Financial Instruments (in line with NFRSs 2018) was
pronounced by Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal (ICAN) to be effective from 16th July
2021. However, due to various reasons including challenges posed by emergence of COVID,
limited time availability and lack of technical expertise, full implementation of NFRS 9 was
deferred till FY 2080/81, for banks and financial institutions. Hence, the provisions of NFRS 9 that
includes expected credit loss, is fully effective in the Microfinance from FY 2081/82.

The Microfinance recognizes a loss allowance for expected credit losses on a financial asset that
are measured at Amortized Cost (AC), Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Income
(FVTOCI), a lease receivable, a contract asset or a loan commitment and a financial guarantee
contract to which the impairment requirements apply.

The ECL approach results in the early recognition of credit losses because it includes, not only
losses that have already been incurred, but also expected future credit losses — it is a forward-
looking model.

Any financial instrument classified and measured at FVTPL is not covered under impairment
requirements of NFRS 9. The methods for the calculation of Expected Credit Loss is classified into
3 broad approaches:
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1. General approach

These approaches are applicable to financial assets measured at amortized cost, financial assets
measured at FVOCI with recycling, Loan commitments (not at FVTPL), Financial guarantee
contracts (not at FVTPL).

Lifetime ECL is recognized for all financial assets where the credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition.

At the reporting date, if the credit risk has not increased significantly since initial recognition, the
Microfinance measures the loss allowance for those financial assets at an amount equal to 12- month
ECL.

For loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts, the date that the entity becomes party to the
irrevocable commitments is considered to be the date of initial recognition for the purpose of applying
the impairment requirements. The Microfinance recognizes in profit or loss, as an impairment gain
or loss, the amount of expected credit losses (or reversal) that is required to adjust the loss allowance
at the reporting date to the amount that is required to be recognized in accordance with NFRS 9.

Under the general approach, NFRS 9 recognizes a three-stage approach to measure expected credit
losses and recognize interest income.

Stage 1:

The financial instruments that have not had a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition
are classified in Stage 1. The Financial instruments at stage 1 require, at initial recognition, a
provision for ECL associated with the probability of default events occurring within the next 12
months (12-month ECL). For those financial assets with a remaining maturity of less than 12 months,
a Probability of Default (PD) is used that corresponds to the remaining maturity. Interest is calculated
on the gross carrying amount of the financial asset before adjusting for ECL.

This stage includes the following:
1. Initially recognized financial instruments (other than those purchased or originated credit
impaired financial assets)
ii. Financial instruments having no significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition.
iii. Financial assets for which contractual payments are not overdue or are overdue for up to 1
month.
iv. Financial instruments having low credit risk at the reporting date.

For this purpose, instruments with low credit risk include:

* All exposures on Nepal Government/Province/Local Level or Nepal Rastra Bank

*  Exposures fully guaranteed by Nepal Government/Province/Local Level.

* Foreign Sovereign exposures having rating BBB- and above from an external rating agency
at the reporting date.

*  All exposures on BIS, IMF, EC, ECB and multilateral development banks with risk weight
of 0% as defined in Capital Adequacy Framework 2015.

»  Debenture/bonds having rating of AA or above at reporting date from external credit rating
agency.

The Microfinance determines at each reporting date whether the financial instruments meet the
requirement of low credit risk. If the instrument does not meet the requirement of low credit risk, the
Microfinance determines whether the risk of default on the financial instrument has been increased
significantly or not after initial recognition. If the risk has been increased, the instruments are classified
under stage 2 and accordingly lifetime ECL is recognized.
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Stage 2:

The financial instruments having significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition are
classified in Stage 2. A provision is required for the lifetime ECL representing losses over the life of
the financial instrument (lifetime ECL). Interest income is continued to be recognized on a gross basis.

This stage includes the following:

1. Financial instruments having significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition.

ii. Financial instruments having contractual payments overdue for more than 1 month but not
exceeding 3 months.

iii. Loans classified as “Watchlist’ as per NRB directive on prudential provisioning.

iv. Loans without approved credit line or with credit line revoked by microfinance.

v. Loan that has been restructured/rescheduled but not classified as non-performing loan as per
existing provisions of NRB directives. However, rescheduling of installment/EMI based loans
resulting in reduction in number of installments due to prepayments or change in number of
installments due to change in interest rates under floating interest rate are not applicable.

vi. Claims on non-investment grade financial instruments i.e. with a credit rating of BB+ or below.

Stage 3:

The credit impaired or defaulted financial instruments are classified or moved to Stage 3. A provision
is required for the lifetime ECL representing the losses over the life of the instrument (lifetime ECL)
with the probability of default (PD) a 100%. Interest income is calculated on an actual receipt basis.

This stage includes the following:

i. Financial instruments having contractual payments overdue for more than 3 months

ii. The Microfinance considers that the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the
Microfinance in full, without realizing securities (if held).

The indicators of unlikeness to pay include:

* The Microfinance puts credit obligation on non-accrued status.

* The Microfinance consents to distressed restructuring of credit obligation resulting in
reduction in financial obligation due to material forgiveness, postponement of principal,
interest

*  The Microfinance has filed for the debtor’s bankruptcy or a similar order in respect of the
borrower’s credit obligation.

* The Microfinance sells a part of the credit obligation at a material credit-related economic
loss.

* The debtor has sought or has been placed in bankruptcy or similar protection where this
would avoid or delay repayment of the credit obligation.

» There is evidence that full repayment based on contractual terms is unlikely without the
Microfinance's realization of collateral regardless of whether the exposure is current or past
due by a few days.

1. Loan is classified non- performing as per NRB prudential provisioning directive.
iv. Credit impaired financial instruments with objective evidence of impairment.
v. The financial assets classified as purchased or originated credit impaired (POCI) assets as per

NFRS 9. POCI assets also refer to new loans disbursed during the current reporting period for

accounts that were classified under Stage 3 at previous reporting date.
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Particulars Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
Nature 12 month expected credit | 12 month expected 12 month expected
loss credit loss credit loss
Risk No significant risk since | Significant credit risk Credit impaired
initial recognition since initial recognition | (With objective
evidence of
impairment)
Nature Performing Performing Non-performing
Interest Revenue | Effective interest on gross | Effective interest on Interest on Actual
carrying amount £ross carrying amount Receipt Basis

Impairment of loan and advances to customer on Financial Statements

The financial statement comprises of Loan and advances to customers, and such are impaired and
classified as collective impairment and individual impairment. Collective impairment allowance
consists general loan provision, watch list loan provision and restructure/ reschedule loan provision.
And Individual impairment allowance consists of sub-standard loan provision, doubtful loan
provision, loss loan provision and reserve for additional loan provision.

Definition of Credit Impaired Financial Instruments:

A financial instrument is credit-impaired when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on
the estimated future cash flows of that financial instrument have occurred. Evidence that a financial
instrument is credit-impaired include observable data about the following events:

Significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the borrower.

A breach of contract, such as a default or past due event.

The lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s) would not
otherwise consider.

It is becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganization.
The disappearance of an active market for that financial instrument because of financial
difficulties; or

The purchase or origination of a financial instrument at a deep discount that reflects the incurred
credit losses.

Credit impaired financial instruments also includes credit impaired defined by the Microfinance as per
their risk management practices.

Indicators of significant increase in credit risk (SICR):

Assessment of significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition is required for determining
whether the lifetime or the 12-month expected credit loss is to be recognized. NRB’s guidelines
regarding Expected credit Loss has given the following conditions which are deemed as indicators of
significant increase in credit risk.

1.
ii.
iii.
1v.
V.

Vi,
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More than one month past due

Absolute lifetime PD is 5% or more

Relative lifetime PD is increased by 100% or more

Risk rating (internal or external) downgraded by 2 notches since initial recognition

Risk rating downgraded to non-investment grade by external credit rating agency (BB+ or below)
or by microfinance’s internal credit rating system

Deterioration of relevant determinants of credit risk (e.g. future cash flows) for an individual
obligor (or pool of obligors)
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vii. Expectation of forbearance or restructuring due to financial difficulties
viii. Deterioration of prospects for sector or industries within which a borrower operates
ix. Borrowers affected by macroeconomic conditions based on reasonable and supportable forecasts.
x. Modification of terms resulting in restructuring/rescheduling
xi. Credit Quality Indicators determined as per internal credit assessment of performing loans which
are subject to individual monitoring and review, are weaker than that in the initial recognition

xii. Management decision to strengthen collateral and/or covenant requirements for credit exposures
because of changes in the credit risk of those exposures since initial recognition.

xiii. Both qualitative and quantitative factors are encouraged to be considered while assessing whether
there have been significant increases in credit risk. Accurate identification of drivers of credit
risk and reliable demonstration of linkage between those drivers and level of credit risk is also
critical.

2. Simplified approach applicable to certain trade receivables, contract assets and lease
receivables.
Under simplified approach, the entity measures loss allowance at an amount equal to the Lifetime
ECL

e Mandatorily for the trade receivables or contract assets which do not contain the significant
financing component.

e Has been applied optionally for the trade receivables, lease receivables and other contract asset
which contain a significant financing component.

3. Specific approach for purchased or originated Credit-impaired Financial Asset.
These approaches are applicable to loan and advances swapped, purchased or exchanged by the

Microfinances and has high credit risk.

The Microfinance is required to include the initial expected credit losses in the estimated cash
flows when calculating the credit-adjusted effective interest rate for financial assets that are
considered to be purchased or originated credit-impaired at initial recognition. Hence, only the
cumulative changes in lifetime expected credit losses since initial recognition is recognized as a
loss allowance for purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets.

Portfolio segmentation:

Guidelines under NFRS 9 on the collective assessment of ECL,

e As per NFRS 9, depending on the nature of the financial instruments and the credit risk
information available for particular groups of financial instruments, the Microfinance may not be
able to identify significant changes in credit risk for individual financial instruments before the
financial instrument becomes past due.

e For the purpose of determining significant increases in credit risk and recognizing a loss allowance
on a collective basis, the Microfinance groups financial instruments based on shared credit risk
characteristics with the objective of facilitating an analysis that is designed to enable significant
increases in credit risk to be identified on a timely basis.

The following factors are considered for Portfolio Segmentation while calculating ECL:

e The individual or collective assessment approaches is used depending on the ability to incorporate
forward-looking information into the ECL estimate.

e Collective assessments is generally used for a large group of similar lending exposures, while
individual assessments is considered for significant exposures or specific credit concerns.-as
mentioned in policy
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¢  Grouping exposures having similar risks helps estimate the impact of future factors like economic
changes on ECL, when individual assessments cannot consider forward looking information. If
the forward-looking information has already been considered in individual assessments, additional
assessment on a collective basis is be avoided, if it results in double-counting.

e Grouping exposures in such a way that an increase in the credit risk of particular exposures is
masked by the performance of the group as a whole is avoided.

Curing Period and Transfer Criteria Between Stages:

Financial assets are transferred between the different categories (other than POCI) depending on their
relative change in credit risk since initial recognition. Financial instruments are transferred out of stage
2 if their credit risk is no longer considered to be significantly increased since initial recognition based
on the assessments described in Note ....... and also as per the Policy on Upgrading of Credit
Facilities. Financial instruments are transferred out of Stage 3 when they no longer exhibit any
evidence of credit impairment as described above as per the Policy on Upgrading of Credit Facilities.

The Microfinance has developed a comprehensive Policy on Upgrading of Credit Facilities in line
with the NFRS 9- Expected Credit Loss Related Guidelines, 2024. Accordingly, credit facilities other
than restructured and rescheduled facilities are upgraded to a better stage.

Transfer from Stage 2 to Stage 1:
Where there is evidence of significant reduction in credit risk, the Microfinance upgrades such
exposure from Stage 2 to Stage 1.

Transfer Out of Stage 3:
Though the conditions for an exposure to be classified in Stage 3 no longer exist, the Microfinance
continues to monitor for a minimum probationary period of three month to upgrade from Stage 3.

For Restructured/Rescheduled Exposures:

The Microfinance monitors restructured/ rescheduled exposures classified under Stage 3 for a
minimum probationary period of 24 months before up-gradation.

Upgrading of stages for exposures is executed by the Risk Management Department.

Provisioning for other financial assets at amortized cost

In addition to the ECL for loans and investments as prescribed above, the Microfinance also holds
other financial assets such as balances with bank, working advances and other financial assets. The
Microfinance recognizes ECL on such assets based on the historical loss experience measures (e.g.
write off rates / provisioning rates) adjusted for expected losses in the future keeping in mind the
nature of industry (e.g. regulated industry like banking) and credit ratings of such counterparties.

ECL Calculation:

The Microfinance measures ECL in a way that reflects an unbiased and probability-weighted amount
determined by evaluating a range of possible outcomes and the reasonable and supportable information
available without undue cost or effort at the reporting date, about past events, current conditions and
forecast of future economic conditions. While estimating the ECLs, the Microfinance considers three
probability-weighted scenarios (a base case, a best case and a worse case).
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The calculation of ECL consists of three key components and discount factor:
- Probability of Default (PD)
- Loss Given Default (LGD)
- Exposure at Default (EAD)

ECL=PD*LGD*EAD*Discount Factor
i. Probability of Default (PD):

PD is an estimate of the likelihood of a default over a given time horizon. NFRS 9 requires separate
PD for 12-month duration and lifetime duration depending on the stage allocation of the borrower.

For assets which are in Stage 1, a 12-month PD is required. For Stage 2 and Stage 3 assets, a lifetime
PD is required, for which a PD term structure needs to be built.

PD describes the probability of a loan to eventually falling in default (>3 months past due) category.
To calculate the PD, loans are classified in three stages based on risk profile of the individual loans.
PD percentage is calculated for each loan account separately and is determined by using available
historical observations. PD for stage 1: is derived as percentage of all loans in stage 1 moving into
stage 3 in 12 months’ time. PD for stage 2: is derived as percentage of all loans in stage 2 moving
into stage 3 in the maximum lifetime of the loans under observation. PD for stage 3: is derived as
100% considering that the default occurs as soon as the loan becomes overdue for 3 months which
matches the definition of stage 3.

As per NRB Guidelines, PD is an estimate of the likelihood of a default over a given time horizon.
With regards to PD estimation, the following measures are considered by the Microfinance.
1. Derived PD based on historical default migration rates and/other data, internal and external credit
rating etc.
ii. Incorporated forward-looking PD information as well by adjusting PD to its sensitivity to changes
in certain macroeconomic factors.
iii. Used at least five-year historical data, where available, for calculating PDs and validate any
smoothing of data or inputs by the Risk Management Department.

Irrespective of results derived by the model of the Microfinance, prudential floor of 2.5% as
prescribed by the NRB is used.

ii. Loss Given Default (LGD):

LGD is the percentage of exposure that is not expected to be recovered in the event of a default. The
LGD is usually defined as the amount of credit that is lost by a financial institution when an obligor
defaults.

LGD models are developed based on historical data, historical experience of cash recovery from
defaults (including settlements), cost and time of recoveries and all other relevant and supportable
information (including forward looking information).

While determining loss rate or recovery rate for the purpose of calculation of loss allowance, expected
cash flows from collateral realization are to be considered based on latest reliable internal/external
valuations. Microfinance deploys its internal team or forms a committee to review the value of
collateral as required.

It is recommended to pursue computation of LGD in the following order:
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1. Use historical actual recovery rates in first place.

. If historical rates are unavailable, use valuation (prudential floors) for ECL calculation as
outlined in this guideline taking into acount disposal time and costs until expected disposal
of collateral or assets. However, value of collateral or assets for loans that have defaulted
and BFIs have also not been able to realize within 5 years of default, cannot be used for
determining loss or recovery rates.

1. If such net realizable value of collateral or other sources are reliably undeterminable and BFIs
are unable to compute LGDs due to lack of data or inputs, they are required to obtain
approval of the same from the board of directors. Such BFIs are required to use a minimum
LGD of 45 per cent for such credit exposures.

Note: BFIs should demonstrate via sound back-testing that the assumptions used are reasonable and
grounded in observed experience. In this context, BFIs should regularly back-test their valuation
history (last valuation before the asset was classified as a NPL or Stage 3) vs. their sales history (net
sales price of collateral).

iii. Exposure at Default (EAD):

Exposure at Default (EAD) refers to the expected exposure (o a borrower at the event of default.

This is dynamic in nature and keeps changing when the borrower repays his debt or obligation or take
additional debt.

For defaulted accounts or stage 3 accounts, EAD is simply the amount outstanding at the point of
default. However, for stage 1 and stage 2 accounts, the following elements is considered for
computation of EAD under NFRS 9 at the instrument or facility level:

e Time horizon over which EAD needs to be estimated.

® Projected cash flows till the estimated default point.
e Residual maturity.
e Deterministic or non-deterministic nature of the payment terms.

The methodology of EAD varies according to the nature of the product. The products are separated
into three main categories.

¢ Funded Loans:
In the case of the funded loans made available at the predetermined moment or where the total
amount is loaned at the initial recognition, the exposure at default is the total amount outstanding
at that time plus any interest up to the time of default, except for stage 3 where the EAD equals
the total amount outstanding.

e  Working capital facilities:
In case of those loan products of short term nature like working capital, overdraft or the credit
cards, the exposure at default is calculated as the higher of limit or the sum of total outstanding
and interest, except for stage 3 loans where the EAD equals the higher of limit or total amount
outstanding.

Consideration of Reasonable and Supportable Information:

The Microfinance uses experienced credit judgment in determining whether the information used for
the assessment of credit risk and measurement of ECL is, reasonable and supportable. The
information considered includes the information about past events, present conditions and forecasts
of future economic conditions.
 femmea e faei e fEies
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Consideration of Forward-looking Information;

The Microfinance incorporates forward-looking information into both its assessment as to whether
the credit risk of an instrument has increased significantly since its initial recognition and its
measurement of ECL.

The Microfinance also obtained experienced credit judgement from economic outlook and Risk
Management Departments to formulate a base case, a best case and a worst-case scenario. The base
case represents a most-likely outcome and is aligned with information used by the Microfinance for
strategic planning and budgeting. Quantitative economic factors are based on economic data and
forecasts published by the NSO, NRB, and other reliable sources and statistical models. The
Microfinance also obtained experienced credit judgement from economic outlook and Risk
Management Departments to formulate a base case, a best case and a worst-case scenario. The base
case represents a most-likely outcome and is aligned with information used by the Microfinance for
strategic planning and budgeting. Quantitative economic factors are based on economic data and
forecasts published by the NSO, NRB, and other reliable sources and statistical models.

Drivers of Credit Risk

Parameters Sources
GDP CBS
Agricultural GDP NRB
Inflation World Bank
Unemployment Rate NRB
Interest Rate NRB
Remittance Inflow NRB

Per Capita Income CBS

Consideration of Time Value of Money:

The lifetime Expected Credit Loss (LTECL) is discounted to the reporting date, not to the expected
default or some other date, using the coupon interest rate determined at initial recognition or
approximation thereof, that will be applied when recognizing the financial assets resulting from the
loan commitment.

Collateral valuation

The Microfinance seeks to use collateral, where possible, to mitigate its risks on financial assets. The
collateral comes in various forms such as cash, gold, Government Securities, Letters of
Credit/Guarantees, real estate, receivables, inventories, other non-financial assets and credit
enhancements such as netting agreements, etc. While determining loss rate or recovery rate for the
purpose of calculation of loss allowance, expected cash flows from collateral realization have been
considered based on latest reliable internal/external valuations.

Net realizable value of all other collateral or other sources that BFIs have legal right to recover
from, shall be determined as current fair value less 25% haircut.
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The following table provides the quantitative information about the fair value of the collateral held
by the Microfinance for the financial assets that have been credit impaired (Stage 3) as at the reporting
date:

Total exposures |Fair Value of Collateral Carrying Amount of

Type of Collateral in Stage 3 Pledged Financial Assets Secured
Land 83,515,610 307,444,683 83,515,610
Buildings
Vehicles

cash deposits

Securities
Gold/Silver
Other Assets

Multiple assets class

No Impairment due to use of Collateral:

The information about the financial instruments for which the Microfinance has not recognized loss
allowance because of the collateral has been disclosed below. The Net Realizable value of the
collateral has been determined as the fair value less haircut and realization cost as prescribed by NRB
for different types of collateral.

The details of such financial assets (loans and advances) are given below:

Total Loan NRY of Collateral Description of
Loan Products Exposures Pledged Collateral
Micro Enterprise Loan (P02) 700,804,622 .5 2,189.890,755.46

Impact on adoption of NFRS 9
Impact on equity

The Microfinance has transitioned to Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model for recognizing impairment
on the financial assets from the current year. In accordance with NFRS 9 and NRB Directives, the
Microfinance has not restated prior period figures. Instead, the increase in impairment provisions
resulting from the application of the ECL Model has been determined as Day 1 impact and disclosed
separately. The additional provision, net of the tax, represents a reduction in the shareholder’s equity
as at the date of the transition, although no adjustment has been made to the comparative financial
statements of the prior periods.

ECL provision is lower than existing Provision. Hence, there is no adjustment in equity component.
Impact on regulatory Capital

There is no impact on regulatory capital as the transition to impairment as per NFRS 9 applying from
the fiscal year 2081/82.

Presentation of allowance for Expected Credit Loss in the statement of Financial Position:

Loss allowance as per the ECL are presented in the statement of financial position as follows:
e Financial assets measured at amortized cost: as a deduction from the gross carrying amount
of the assets.
¢ For advances measured at cost: as a deduction from the gross carrying amount of the advances.
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¢ Loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts: as a provision in other liabilities

e Where a financial instrument includes both a drawn and an undrawn component, and the
Microfinance cannot identify the ECL on the loan commitment component separately from those
on the drawn component and instead presents a combined loss allowance for both components.
The combined amount is presented as a deduction from the gross carrying amount of the drawn
component. Any excess of the loss allowance over the gross amount of the drawn component is
presented as a provision; and

e Debt instruments measured at FVOCI: No loss allowance is recognized in the statement of
financial position because the carrying amount of these assets is their fair value. However, the
loss allowance is disclosed and is recognized in OCI.

Scenario probability weighting (Microfinance)

Scenario As on Ashadh end 2082 As on Ashadh end 2081
Best Case 20% 20%
Base (Normal) Case 30% 30%
Worst Case 50% 50%

The Microfinance has not changed probability weighting for the scenario through-out the year.

. Write-off of Loans and Advances:

Loans (and the related impairment allowance accounts) are normally written off, either partially or
in full, when there is no realistic prospect of recovery. Where loans are secured, this is generally after
receipt of any proceeds from the realization of security. In circumstances where the net realizable
value of any collateral has been determined and there is no reasonable expectation of further recovery,
write-off may be earlier.

The indicators that there is no reasonable expectation of recovery of the loans written off considered
by the Microfinance are:

Written-off Financial Assets still Subject to Enforcement Activity

During the period, the entity wrote off certain loans and advances due to its non-recoverability, in
accordance with its credit risk and impairment policies. However, enforcement activities, including
legal proceedings and debt recovery actions, are still ongoing for some of the assets.

The contractual amounts outstanding on these written-off assets that are still subject to enforcement
are as follows:

Type of Loans Contractual amount written off Enforcement Status

Offsetting of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to
settle on a net basis, or realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously (‘the offset criteria’).
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C. Revenue recognition:
Interest Income

Pursuant to adoption of ECL model, recognition of interest income has been based upon NRB,
Guidance Note on Interest Income Recognition, 2025,

For Stage 1 and Stage 2 Loans and Advances: Interest on gross recognition following the accrual
basis

For Stage 3 Loans and Advances: Interest on actual cash receipt basis.

NFRS Requirement

NFRS requires interest income to be recognized using the effective interest method, except for those
classified at fair value through profit or loss. The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortized cost of a financial asset and of allocating the interest income over the expected life of
the financial instrument. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated
future cash payments or receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or, when
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial liability.
The effective interest rate is calculated on initial recognition of the financial asset or liability by
estimating the future cash flows after considering all the contractual terms of the instrument but not
future credit losses. The calculation includes all amounts expected to be paid or received by the
Microfinance including expected early redemption fees and related penalties and premiums and
discounts that are an integral part of the overall return. Once financial asset or a group of similar
financial assets has been written down as a result of an impairment loss, interest income is recognized
using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the
impairment loss.

Impairment Charge of the Microfinance for the FY 2081/82

The Microfinance for the current financial year has assessed the impairment under para 5.5 of the
NFRS 9 impairment model and the NRB Directive.

The Microfinance, following regulatory backstop as mentioned Clause 16 of “NFRS 9- Expected
Credit Loss Related Guidelines, 2024” has recognize impairment on credit exposures as the HIGHER
of total ECL calculated as per NFRS 9 and existing regulatory provisions as mentioned in Unified
NRB Directives no 02. The Following table below depicts the calculation of impairment allowance
as per NFRS 9 and NRB Directives:

(Figures in NPR)

2081/82 2080/81
S.N. | Financial Statement Items As per NFRS 9 PRT—— As per NFRS 9 As per
(ECL) I (ECL) NRB

On Balance Sheet Items:

I |Cash and Cash Equivalent

2 |Due from Nepal Rastra Bank

3 Placement with Bank and
Financial Institutions

4 Derivative financial

instruments

5 |Other trading assets

6 |Loan and advances to B/FIs
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2081/82 2080/81
S.N. | Financial Statement Items As per NFRS 9 As per NRB As per NFRS 9 As per
(ECL) (ECL) NRB
7 E‘l‘l’sgif‘e‘;g Ndvmpes o 70,004,156| 112,323,022 56,269.470| 74,163,219
8 |Investment securities
9  |Current tax assets
10 |Investment in subsidiaries
11 |Investment in associates
12 |Other assets:
a) Lease Receivable
b) Contract Asset
¢) Others
Off Balance Sheet Items:
13 |Loan Commitments
14 |Financial guarantee contracts
15  |Others
Total 70,004,156| 112,323,022 56,269,470| 74,163,219

Impairment Charge as per Expected Credit Loss (ECL) method

Particulars As at Ashadh end 2082
Loans and advances to customers (A) 70,004,156
Other financial assets (B)
Off-balance sheet credit exposures (C)
Total impairment charges (D = A+B+C) 70,004,156
Investments in subsidiaries (E)
Direct write-offs (F)
Total charge to Impairment Charge to Income Statements 70,004,156
As at Ashadh end 2082
Particulars
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Loans and stvances o 10.367.309 5.487.102 | 54.149.745 70,004,156
customers (A)
Other Financial Assets ) a - -
(B)
Cash and cash } . S =
equivalent
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Due from Nepal Rastra
Bank

Placement with Bank
and Financial
Institutions

Derivative Financial
Instruments

Other Trading Assets

Other assets

Off-balance sheet credit
exposures (C)

Total impairment
5, 5

liarges (D = A+BHC) 10,367,309 487,102 | 54,149,74 70,004,156
Particulars of Expected Credit Loss:
Advances-Exposures

Stage )
Particulars Receivables Total
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
Opening Balance as on 2,319,681,278|1,071,760,648| 373,307,649 -| 3,764,749.575

Shrawan 1, 2081

New Advances 3,380,639,477| 35,406,113| 105,119,199 -1 3,521,164,788
Repaid -399.972.483| -116,719,324| -7,446,399 -l -524,138,206
Assets derecognized -1,111,956,305( -531,031,751|-191,069,625 -1-1,834,057,681
Transfer to Stage | 7,486,480 -7,372,640 -113.840 - -
Transfer to Stage 2 -117,028,412]| 118,522, 561| -1,494,148 - -
Transfer to Stage 3 -114,638,431| -87,860,559| 202,498,990 - -
Off balance Sheet Exposures - - - - -
Receivables - - - - -
Total 3,964,211,603| 482,705,047 480,801,825 -| 4,927,718,475
Amounts written off/charged } J i | )
off

Foreign Exchange " ) i | i
Adjustments

Closing Balance 3,964,211,603| 482,705,047 480,801,825 - 4,927,718,475
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Advances- Credit Loss Allowances

Stage
Particulars Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 | Receivables Total
Opening Balance as on Shrawan 1 2081 5,500,702 13,753,291 37,015,477 -| 56,269,470
Impact of adoption of NFRS 9 - - - - -
g;l;récg on Shrawsn 1 2081 afieriadopting 5500,702|  13,753.291| 37,015.477 -| 56269470
New Advances/Additional Charge 9,137,653 620913 11,412.730 - 21,171,296
Assets derecognized or repaid -2,969,680 -8,317,983| -18,3006,731 -| -29,594,394
Transfer to Stage 1 14,231 -13.889 -343 - -
Transfer to Stage 2 -1,970,702 1,987,628 -16,926 - -
Transfer to Stage 3 -12,080,819 -8,143.741| 20,224,560 2 =
Change in ECL Provision 12,735,923 5,600,883 3,820,979 - 22,157,785
Off balance Sheet Exposures - - - - -
Receivables - - - - -
Total 10,367,309 5,487,102 54,149,745 - 70,004,156
Amounts written off/charged off - - = -
Changes in risk parameters - - - |
(PDs/LGDs/EADs)
Foreign Exchange Adjustments = = -
Closing Balance as on Ashad 31, 2082 10,367.309 5,487,102 54,149,745 -| 70,004,156
Loan Classification and Corresponding ECL:
2081/82 2080/81
Classification Stage |Outstanding amount| ECL  |Outstanding Amount| ECL
Performing Loans
Pass Loan Stage 1 3.964.211,603(10,367.310 2,319.681.278| 5.500,702
Watchlist Stage 2 41,122,443 479,085 291,824,364| 4,314,224
Restructured from performing Stage 2 441,582.604| 5,008,018 779.936.285| 9.439.068
Non- Performing Loans
Restructured from non-performing [Stage 3 35,664.887| 3,684,891 235,678,770| 20,952,774
Substandard Stage 3 36.885,899( 3.494,752 30,117,328 3.101,188
Doubtful Stage 3 14,157,982 1,251,850 15,995,245| 1,681,256
Loss Loan Stage 3 317.640,657|38.678.,345 81,413,628 10,231,352
Stagel transfered to stage 3 Stage3 72,986.913| 6,667,435 6,680,057 719,706
Stage 2 transfered to stage 3 Stage3 3,465487| 372471 3,422,622 329,200
Off balance Sheet exposures - - - -
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2081/82 2080/81
Classification Stage |Outstanding amount| ECL |Outstanding Amount| ECL

Receivables - - - -
Total 4,927,718,475/70,004,156 3,764,749,575| 56,269,470
Corresponding ECL
Stage | 3,964.211.603/10,367,309 2.319.61.278| 5,500,702
Stage 2 482,705,047 5.487,102 1,071.760,648| 13,753,291
Stage 3 480.801,825|54,149,745 373,307.649| 37,015,477
Off balance Sheet exposures - - - -
Receivables - - 5 .

Total 4,927,718,475/70,004,156 3,764,749,575) 56,269,470)

Impairment of loan and advances through ECL method has been calculated by third party consultant.

Impairment of investment in equity instrument classified as fair value though other comprehensive
income

Objective evidence of impairment of investment in an equity instrument is a significant or
prolonged decline in its fair value below its cost. Impairment losses are recognized by reclassifying
the losses accumulated in the fair value reserve in equity to profit or loss. The cumulative loss that
is reclassified from equity to profit or loss is the difference between the acquisition cost, net of any
principal repayment and the current fair value, less any impairment loss recognized previously in
profit or loss.

3.4 Trading assets

Interest income on all trading assets is considered to be incidental to the microfinance’s trading
operations and are presented together with all other changes in fair value of trading assets and
liabilities in net trading income.

Interest expense on all trading liabilities is considered to be incidental to the microfinance’s trading
operations and are presented together with all other changes in fair value of trading assets and
liabilities in net trading income.

3.5 Property and Equipment
a) Recognition and Measurement

Property and Equipment are recognized if it is probable that future economic benefits associated
with the assets will flow to the Finance and the cost of the asset can be reliably measured. The cost
includes expenditures that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the assets. Cost of self-
constructed assets includes followings:

e (Cost of materials and direct labour;

e Any other cost directly attributable to bringing the assets to the working condition for their
intended use; and

e (Capitalized borrowing cost
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Property and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment loss if any. Neither any class of the property and equipment are measured at revaluation
model nor is their fair value measured at the reporting date.

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized if it is probable that the future economic benefits from the
expenditure will flow to the entity. Ongoing repairs and maintenance to keep the assets in working
condition are expensed as incurred.

Any gain or losses on de-recognition of an item of property and equipment is recognized in profit
or loss.

b) Capital work in progress

Assets in the course of construction are capitalised in the assets under capital work in progress
account (CWIP). At the point when an asset 1s capable of operating at management’s intended use,
the cost of construction is transferred to the appropriate category of property, plant and equipment
and depreciation commences. Where an obligation (legal or constructive) exists to dismantle or
remove an asset or restore a site to its former condition at the end of its useful life, the present value
of the estimated cost of dismantling, removing or restoring the site is capitalized along with the
cost of acquisition or construction upon completion and a corresponding liability is recognized.

¢) Depreciation

Property and equipment's are depreciated based on the remaining useful life basis from the date of
adoption of NFRS as determined by the Management. Depreciation is recognized in profit or
loss. Land is not depreciated. Charging of depreciation is ceased from the earlier of the date from
which the asset is classified as held for sale or is derecognized.

The estimated useful lives of significant items of property and equipment for current ycar and
comparative periods are as follows:

Type of Asset Depreciation Rate
Buildings 5%
Computer & Accessories 25%
Vehicles - Two-wheeler 20%
- Four-wheeler 20%
Furniture & Fixtures 25%
Equipment & Others — Equipment 25%
Other Assets 25%

The Microfinance adopts cost model for entire classes of property, plant and equipment. It has
not measured any item of property, plant and equipment at fair values using revaluation model.
The items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation
and any accumulated impairment losses.

Depreciation of newly acquired assets is charged based upon the date of invoice and assets
having acquisition cost less than NPR. 5,000 are written down as an expense for the period in
the Statement of Profit and Loss.

3.6 Intangible assets

Intangible assets with [inite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment annually either individually
or at the cash generating unit level. Such intangibles are not amortised. The useful life of an
intangible asset with an indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether indefinite life
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assessment continues to be supportable. If not, the change in the useful life assessment from
indefinite to finite is made on a prospective basis.

The intangible asset with finite useful lives is amortised over the useful economic life and assessed
for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The
amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are
reviewed at least at each financial year end. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected
pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are accounted for by
changing the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in
accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised
in the statement of profit or loss.

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

Certain computer software costs are capitalized and recognised as intangible assets based on
materiality, accounting prudence and significant benefits expected to flow therefrom for a period
longer than one year.

The estimated useful lives of significant items of intangible assets for current year and comparative
periods are as follows:

Class of Assets Useful Life Rate of depreciation
Computer Software 5 years 20% SLM
Investment Property

Investment property is the land or building or both held either for rental income or for capital
appreciation or for both, but not for sale in ordinary course of business and owner-occupied
property. The Microfinance holds investment property that has been acquired through the
enforcement of security over the loan and advances.

Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. The carrying
amount includes the cost of replacing part of an existing investment property at the time that cost
is incurred if the recognition criteria are met; and excludes the costs of day-to-day servicing of an
investment property. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are stated at fair value,
which reflects market conditions at the reporting date. Gains or losses arising from changes in the
fair values of investment properties are included in the income statement in the year in which they
arise. Investment properties which are initially measured at cost are subsequently measured at cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment loss if any.

Fair values are evaluated annually by an accredited external, independent valuator.

Investment properties are derccognised either when they have been disposed of, or when the
investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected
from its disposal. Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment property are
recognised in the income statement in the year of retirement or disposal.

Income tax

The Company is subject to tax laws of Nepal. Income Taxes have been calculated as per the
provisions of the Income Tax Act, 2058. Deferred tax is recorded on temporary differences between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts, at the rates that have been enacted
or substantively enacted at the reporting date. The ultimate realisation of deferred tax assets is
dependent upon the generation of future taxable profits during the periods in which those temporary
differences and tax law carry-forwards become deductible. The company considers the expected
reversal of deferred tax liabilities and projected future taxable income making this assessment. The
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amount of the deferred tax assets considered realisable, however, could be reduced in the near term
if estimates of future taxable income during the carry-forward period are reduced.

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognised in the statement
of profit and loss except to the extent it relates to items directly recognised in equity or in other
comprehensive income.

Current Tax

Current tax is the amount of tax payable based on the taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit
differs from ‘profit before tax” as reported in the statement of profit and loss because of items of

income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or
deductible.

Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current period are measured at the amount expected
to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute
the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date in the countries
where the Company operates and generates taxable income. Current income tax assets and
liabilities also include adjustments for tax expected to be payable or recoverable in respect of
previous periods.

Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences arising between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes.

Deferred tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) enacted or substantively enacted at the
reporting date and that are expected to apply when the related deferred tax asset is realised or the
deferred tax liability is settled. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and reversed
if it is no longer probable that the related tax benefits will be realised. The measurement of deferred
tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Company expects,
at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, carry forward of unused
tax credits and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and
unused tax losses can be utilised except:

1. Where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or
loss.

ii.  In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and interests in joint ventures, deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent
that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and
taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss.
Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to set
off current tax assets against current income tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same
taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

3.9 Deposits, debt securities issued and subordinated liabilities

Microfinance deposits consist of money placed into the Microfinance by its customers. These
deposits are made to various saving deposit accounts. Details and further disclosures about deposits
have been explained in Note that follows.
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3.10 Provisions
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Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a
result of a past event, when it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation and when the amount can be reliably estimated.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the
present obligation at the end of the reporting period, considering the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle
the present obligation, it carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows (when the effect
of the time value of money is material).

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be
recovered from a third party, a receivable is recognised as asset if it is virtually certain that
reimbursement will be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

A disclosure for contingent liabilities is made where there is:

e a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed
only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not
wholly within the control of the entity; or

e present obligation that arises from past events but is not recognized because:

o it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation; or
o the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be
confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not
wholly within the control of the entity.

Commitments include the amount of purchase order (net of advances) issued to parties for
completion of assets.

Provisions, contingent liabilities, contingent assets and commitments are reviewed at each
reporting period.

Provisions for onerous contracts are recognized when the expected benefits to be derived by the
Company from a contract are lower than the unavoidable costs of meeting the future obligations
under the contract.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue comprises of interest income, fees and commission, foreign exchange income, cards
income, disposal income etc. Revenue is recognized to the extent it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Microfinance and the revenue can be reliably measured. Revenue is not
recognized during the period in which its recoverability of income is not probable. The bases of
incomes recognition are as below:

Interest income

Pursuant to adoption of ECL model, recognition of interest income has been based upon NRB,
Guidance Note on Interest Income Recognition, 2025.

For Stage 1 and Stage 2 Loans and Advances: Interest on gross recognition following the accrual
basis

For Stage 3 Loans and Advances: Interest on actual cash receipt basis.

NFRS Requirement

Interest income is recognized in profit or loss using effective interest method. Effective interest rate
is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments and receipts through the
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expected life of financial asset or liability to the carrying amount of the asset or liability. The
calculation of effective interest rate includes all transactions cost and fee and points paid or received
that are integral part of the effective interest. The transaction costs include incremental costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets.

Interest income presented in statement of comprehensive income includes:

e Interest income on financial assets measured at amortized cost calculated on an effective
interest rate method. These financial assets include loans and advances including staff loans,
mvestment in government securities, investment in corporate bonds, investment in NRB Bond
and deposit instruments, reverse repos, inter banking lending etc.

e Interest on investment securities measured at fair value, calculated on effective interest rate.

e Income on discounted instruments like bills purchased, documents negotiation is recognized
over the period of discounting on accrual basis using effective interest rate.

Interest income on all trading assets 1s considered to be incidental to the Microfinance’s trading
operations and are presented together with all other changes in fair value of trading assets and
liabilities in net trading income.

Fee and commission income

Fees and commission income that are integral to the effective interest rate on a financial asset are
included in measurement of effective interest rate. Other fees and commission income including
management fee, service charges, syndication fee, forex transaction commission, commission of
issue of guarantee are recognized as the related services are performed.

Dividend income

Dividend on investment in resident company is recognized when the right to receive payment is
established. Dividend income is presented in net trading income, net income from other financial
instruments at fair value through profit or loss or other revenue based on the underlying
classification of the equity instruments.

Net trading income

Results arising from trading activities include all gains and losses from changes in fair value and
related interest income or expense and dividends for financial assets and financial liabilities held
for trading. This includes any ineffectiveness recorded in hedging transactions.

Net income from other financial instrument at fair value through Profit or Loss

Financial assets and financial liabilities classified in this category are those that have been
designated by management upon initial recognition. Management may only designate an
instrument at fair value through profit or loss upon initial recognition when the following criteria
are met, and designation is determined on an instrument-by-instrument basis:

e The designation eliminates or significantly reduces the inconsistent treatment that would
otherwise arise from measuring the assets or liabilities or recognising gains or losses on them
on a different basis.

e The assets and liabilities are part of a group of financial assets, financial liabilities or both,
which are managed and their performance evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with
a documented risk management or investment strategy.

e The financial instrument contains one or more embedded derivatives, which significantly
modify the cash flows that would otherwise be required by the contract.

Financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recorded in the
statement of financial position at fair value. Changes in fair value are recorded in Net gain or loss
on financial assets and liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss is recognised in
statement of Profit or Loss. Interest earned or incurred is accrued in Interest income or Interest
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expense, respectively, using the effective interest rate (EIR), while dividend income is recorded in
other operating income when the right to the payment has been established.

Interest expense

Interest expense on all financial liabilities including deposits is recognized in profit or loss using
effective interest rate method. Interest expense on all trading liabilities is considered to be incidental
to the Microfinance’s trading operations and are presented together with all other changes in fair
value of trading assets and liabilities in net trading income.

Employees Benefits
a) Short Term Employee Benefirs

Short term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed
as the related service is provided. A liability is also recognized for the amount expected to be paid
under bonus required by the prevailing Bonus Act pay the amount as a result of past service
provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably under short term employee
benefits.

Short-term employee benefits include all the following items (if payable within 12 months after the
end of the reporting period):

wages, salaries and social security contributions;
paid annual leave and paid sick leave;
profit-sharing and bonuses; and

non-monetary benefits

b) Post-Employment Benefit Plan

Post-employment benefit plan includes followings:

i. Defined Contribution Plan

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays a
fixed contribution to a separate entity and has no legal or constructive obligation to pay future
amounts. Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plans are recognized as
personnel expense in profit or loss in the periods during which the related service are rendered
by employees. Pre-paid contributions are recognized as an asset to the extent that cash refund
or reduction in future payments is available. Contributions to a defined contribution plan being
due for more than 12 months after the end of the period in which the employee render the
service are discounted at their present value. The following are the defined contribution plan
provided by the Microfinance (o its employees:

a) Employees Provident Fund

In accordance with law, all employees of the Microfinance are entitled to receive benefits
under the provident fund, a defined contribution plan in which both the employee and the
Microfinance contribute monthly at a pre-determined rate (currently, 10% of the basic
salary plus grades). Microfinance does not assume any future liability for provident fund
benefits other than its annual contribution.

ii. Defined Benefit Plan

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution
plan. The Microfinance’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated
separately for each plan by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have
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earned in return for their service in current and prior periods. That benefit is discounted to
determine its present value. Any unrecognized past service costs and the fair value of any
plan assets are deducted. The discount rate is the yield at the reporting date on high quality
corporate bonds, that have maturity dates approximating the terms of the Microfinance's
obligation and that are denominated in the currency in which the benefits are expected to
be paid. The calculation of obligation is performed annually by a qualified actuary using
projected unit credit method.

The Microfinance recognizes all actuarial gains and losses arising from defined benefit
plans in other comprehensive income and all expenses related to defined benefits plans in
employee benefit are expensed in profit or loss.

The following are the defined benefit plans provided by the Microfinance to its employees:

a) Gratuity

Microfinance provides for gratuity on accrual basis covering eligible employees in terms
of Employee Service Byelaws of the Microfinance. The plan provides for lump sum
payments to vested employees at retirement or upon death while in employment or on
termination of employment for an amount equivalent defined days’ eligible salary payable
for each completed years of service.

b) Leave Salary

The employees of the Microfinance are entitled to carry forward a part of their unveiled/
unutilized leave subject to a maximum limit. The employees can encash unveiled/
unutilized leave partially in terms of Employee Service Byelaws of the Microfinance. The
Microfinance accounts for the liability for entire accumulated outstanding leave balance
on accrual basis as per Employee Service Byelaws of the Microfinance.

¢) Termination Benefits

Termination benefits are recognized as expense when the Microfinance is demonstrably
committed, without realistic possibility of withdrawal, to a formal plan to provide
termination benefits to employees as a result of an offer made to encourage voluntary
redundancy. Termination benefits are recognized if the Microfinance has made an offer for
voluntary redundancy, it is probable that the offer will be accepted and the number of
acceptances can be measured reliably. If the benefits are payable in more than 12 months
after the reporting date, they are discounted to their present value.

3.14 Leases

NFRS 16 — Leases has introduced a single lessee accounting model and requires a lessee to
recognize assets and liabilities for all leases with a term of more than 12 months, unless the
underlying asset is of low value. A lessee is required to recognize a right-of-use asset representing
its right to use the underlying leased asset and a lease liability representing its obligation to make
lease payments. The Microfinance has applied NFRS 16 effective from FY 2078-79.

For any new contracts entered into, The Microfinance considers whether a contract is, or contains
a lease. A lease is defined as ‘a contract, or part of a contract, that convey the right to use an asset
(the underlying asset) for a period of time in exchange for consideration’. To apply this definition,
the Microfinance assesses whether the contract meets three key evaluations which are whether:

e The contract contains an identified asset, which is either explicitly identified in the contract or
implicitly specified by being identified at the time the asset is made available to The
Microfinance

e The Microfinance has the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from use of
the identified asset throughout the period of use, considering its rights within the defined scope
of the contract.
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e The Microfinance has the right to direct the use of the identified asset throughout the period of
use. The Microfinance assess whether it has the right to direct “how and for what purpose’ the
asset is used throughout the period of use.

The Microfinance as a Lessee:

At lease commencement date, the Microfinance recognizes a right-of-use asset and a lease liability
on the balance sheet. The right-of-use asset is measured at cost, which is made up of the initial
measurement of the lease liability, any initial direct costs incurred by the Microfinance, an estimate
of any costs to dismantle and remove the asset at the end of the lease, and any lease payments made
in advance of the lease commencement date (net of any incentives received).

The Microfinance depreciates the right-of-use assets on a straight-line basis from the lease
commencement date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the end
of the lease term. The Microfinance also assesses the right-of-use asset for impairment when such
indicators exist.

At the commencement date, the Microfinance measures the lease liability at the present value of
the lease payments unpaid at that date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease if that
rate is readily available or the Microfinance’s incremental borrowing rate.

Subsequent to initial measurement, the liability will be reduced for payments made and increased
for interest. It is re measured to reflect any reassessment or modification, or if there are changes in
in-substance fixed payments. When the lease liability is re-measured, the corresponding adjustment
is reflected in the right-of-use asset, or profit and loss if the right of-use asset is already reduced to
zero.

The Microfinance has elected to account for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets using
the practical expedients. Instead of recognizing a right-of-use asset and lease liability, the payments
in relation to these are recognized as an expense in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
lease term. On the statement of financial position, right of-use assets have been included in
property, plant and equipment and lease liabilities have been included in trade and other payables

In line with this requirement, previously recognized operating lease liability has been regrouped in
to Lease liability and Right of Use Assets.

Company as a Lessors

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all of the risks and benefits of
ownership of the asset are classified as operating leases. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating
an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the
lease term on the same bases as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the
period in which they are earned.

Share capital and reserves

The Microfinance classifies the capital instruments as equity instruments or financial liabilities in
accordance with the substance with the contractual terms of the instruments. Equity is defined as
residual interest in total assets of an entity after deducting all its liabilities. Common shares are
classified as equity of the Microfinance and distributions thereon are presented in statement of
changes in equity.

The Microfinance is required to maintain the capital adequacy ratio imposed by the regulator. The
ratio is fixed at 8% for current year and the Microfinance has maintained the required ratio.

Incremental costs directly attributable to issue of an equity instruments are deducted from the initial
measurement of the equity instruments. The difference of Rs.69.82 (Rs. 70 after rounding off) has
been reclassed on the previous year balance of share capital and has been adjusted with other
liabilities. This rounding off error in share capital will be adjusted accordingly after finding the
cause of error with share registrar and management.
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3.16 Earnings per share including diluted

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit/(loss) for the year by the weighted
average number of equities shares outstanding during the year. Diluted earnings per share is
computed by dividing the profit/(loss) for the year as adjusted for dividend, interest and other
charges to expense or income (net of any attributable taxes) relating to the dilutive potential equity
shares, by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings
per share and the weighted average number of equity shares which could have been issued on the
conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. Potential equity shares are deemed to be dilutive
only if their conversion to equity shares would decrease the net profit per share from continuing
ordinary operations. Potential dilutive equity shares are deemed to be converted as at the beginning
of the period, unless they have been issued at a later date.

There have been no transactions involving ordinary shares or potential ordinary shares between the
reporting date and the date of the completion of these financial statements which would require the
restatement of earnings per share.

3.17 Segment reporting

An operating segment is a component of the Microfinance that engages in business activities from
which it may earn revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that relating to
transactions with any of the Microfinance’s other components, whose operating results are
reviewed by the management to make decision about resource allocation to each segment and
assess its performance. Since the Chief Operating Decision Maker monitors the activities of the
Microfinance as a whole, the Microfinance has classified a single operating segment.

4 Explanatory Notes
The explanatory notes and significant disclosure relating to the financial statements are as follows:
4.1 Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents consists of the total amount of cash-in-hand, balances with other bank
and financial institutions, money at call and short notice, and highly liquid financial assets with
original maturities of three months or less from the acquisition date that are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in their fair value, and are used by the Microfinance in the
management of its short-term commitments.

Cash and Cash equivalent (Figures in NPR)
Particulars As at As at
32nd Ashadh 2082 31st Ashadh 2081

Cash in hand 497,960 351,450
Balance with B/Fls 622,147,185 215,405,732
Money at call and short notice 15,942 .292 46,801,976
Other = -
Total 638,587,437 262,559,158

4.2  Statutory Balance and Due from Nepal Rastra Bank

Statutory balances held with Nepal Rastra Bank for compulsory cash reserve, securities purchased
from Nepal Rastra Bank under resale agreement and other deposits with and receivables from
Nepal Rastra Bank has been presented under this account head.

Due from Nepal Rastra Bank (Figures in NPR)
Particulars a5 Agat

32nd Ashadh 2082 31st Ashadh 2081
Statutory Balances with NRB 24,000,000 23,000,000

Statutory Balance with BFIs - -
Securities Purchased under re-sale agreement - -
Other deposit and receivable from NRB - =
Total 24,000,000 23,000,000
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4.3 Placement with Bank and Financial Institutions

Placements with domestic as well as foreign bank and financial institutions with original maturities
of more than three months from the acquisition date are presented under this account head.

Placement with Bank and Financial Institutions (Figures in NPR)
Particulars As at As at
32nd Ashadh 2082 31st Ashadh 2081

Placements with domestic B/FIs - -
Less: Allowances for Impairment - -
Total - -

4.4 Derivative Financial Instruments

The derivative financial instruments held by the Microfinance during the year are as follows:

Derivative Financial Instruments (Figures in NPR)
Particulars Asat As at

32nd Ashadh 2082 31st Ashadh 2081
Held for trading

Interest rate swap - 5
Currency swap $ .
Forward exchange contract - -
Others - .
Held for risk management
Interest rate swap - -
Currency swap = -
Forward exchange contract - -
Others - 2
Total - -

4.5 Other Trading Assets

The trading assets held by the Microfinance during the year are as follows:

Other Trading Asses (Figures in NPR)
As at As at
Particulars 32nd Ashadh 31st Ashadh 2081
2082
Treasury Bills - -
Government Bonds - -
NRB Bonds - -
Domestic Corporate Bonds - -
Equities - -
Other - -
Total - -
Pledged - -
Non-pledged - -

4.6 Loans and advances to MFIs and Cooperatives

The Loans and advance disbursed by the Microfinance to other Microfinance and Cooperatives are

as follows:
Loans and advances to MFIs and Cooperatives (Figures in NPR)
Particulars Asat As at
32nd Ashadh 2082 31st Ashadh 2081

Loans to microfinance institutions - =
Loans to Fls - -
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Loans to Cooperatives - -
Less: Allowance for impairment - -
Other - -
Less: Allowance for impairment B -
Total - -

4.6.1. Allowance for impairment
Allowance for impairment

(Figures in NPR)
As at As at

32nd Ashadh 2082 31st Ashadh 2081
Balance for 1*' Shrawan - -
Impairment loss for the year - -
Charge for the year - -
Recoveries/reversal - -
Amount written off - -
Balance at Ashadh end - -

Particulars

4.7 Loans and advances to customers

Outstanding amount of all loans and advances extended to the customers other than BFIs as well
as bills purchased and discounted less the amount of impairment allowances shall be presented.
Loan to employees provided according to the Employees Bylaws of the Microfinance has also been
presented under this head.

Loans and advances to customers (Figures in NPR)
Particulars s Asat
32nd Ashadh 2082 31st Ashadh 2081
Loans and advances measured at
amortized cost i 3,817,958,950
Less:
Impairment allowances (112,392,172) (74,163,219)
Collective Allowances (19,386,581) (22,915,115)
General Loan Loss Provision 10,813,386 7,874,840
Watch List Provision 557,349 2470016
Restructure Provision 8,015,846 12,570,259
Individual Allowances (93,005,591) (51,248,104)
Substandard Provision 2,305,369 1,892,305
Doubtful Provision 1,769,748 3,197,188
Loan Loss Provision 88.861.324 24730279
Additional Provision 69,150 21,428,332
Net amount 4,895,696,504 3,743,795,732
Loans and advances measured at FVTPL ) =
Total 4,895,696,504 3,743,795,732
4.7.1 Analysis of Loans and Advances- By Product
Analysis of Loans and advances- By Product (Figures in NPR)
. As at As at
Fartcuiars 32nd Ashadh 2082 31st Ashadh 2081
Product
Term Loans 4.230,708,685 3.060,086.361
Short term, term loan = -
Long term. Term loan - -
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Hire purchase loan - -
Personal Residential Loans = =
' Staff loans 20,623,683 11,161,850
Others 697,009,790 704,663,213
Sub Total 4,948,342,158 3,775,911,425
Interest receivable 59,746,518 42.047.526
Grand Total 5,008.,088,676 3.,817,958,950

4.7.2 Analysis of Loans and advances- By Collateral

Analysis of Loans and advances- By Collateral) (Figures in NPR)
Particulars A At As L

32nd Ashadh 2082 31st Ashadh 2081
Secured
Immovable assets 696,711 477 704,093,329
Government Guarantee " -
Collateral of Government securitics - -
Collateral of fixed deposit receipt - -
Group Guarantee 4.231,006,998 3,060,656,246
Personal Guarantee - -
Other collateral 20,623,683 11,161,850
Subtotal 4,948.342,158 3,775,911,425
Unsecured - -
Grand Total 4,948,342,158 3,775,911,425

4.7.3 Allowances for Impairment
Impairment of financial assets

At each reporting date, the Microfinance has assessed whether there exists objective evidence that
a financial asset or group of financial assets not carried at fair value through profit or loss are
impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired when objective evidence
demonstrates that a loss event has occurred after the initial recognition of the asset(s), and that the
loss event has an impact on the future cash flows of the asset(s) that can be estimated reliably.

Objective evidence that financial assets are impaired can include significant financial difficulty of
the borrower or issuer, default or delinquency by a borrower, restructuring of a loan or advance by
the Microfinance on terms that the Microfinance would not otherwise consider, indications that a
borrower or issuer will enter bankruptcy, the disappearance of an active market for a security, or
other observable data relating to a group of assets such as adverse changes in the payment status of
borrowers or issuers in the Microfinance, or economic conditions that correlate with defaults in the
Microfinance. In addition, for an investment in an equity security, a significant or prolonged decline
in its fair value below its cost is objective evidence of impairment.

In case of financial difficulty of the borrower, the Microfinance considers to restructure loans rather
than take possession of collateral. This may involve extending the payment arrangements and
agreement of new loan conditions. Once the terms have been renegotiated, any impairment is
measured using the original EIR as calculated before the modification of terms and the loan is no
longer considered past due. Management continually reviews renegotiated loans to ensure that all
criteria are met and that future payments are likely to occur. The loans continue to be subject to an
individual or collective impairment assessment, calculated using the loan’s original EIR.

B Himalayan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited
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1. Use of Carve Outs for Financial Assets

a. For Impairment Calculation

An entity shall assess at the end of each reporting period whether there is any objective
evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets measured at amortised cost is
impaired. If any such evidence exists, the entity shall apply paragraph 63 of NAS 39: Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, to determine the amount of any impairment loss
unless the entity is bank or financial institutions registered as per Bank and Financial
Institutions Act, 2073. Bank and Financial Institutions shall measure impairment loss on loan
and advances as higher of amount derived as per prudential norms prescribed by Nepal Rastra
Bank and amount determined as per paragraph 63. However, bank and financial institutions
shall apply paragraph 63 of NAS 39: Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement to
determine the amount of impairment loss on financial assets other than loan and advances.

b. For Using Effective Interest rate
During the reporting period Bank has used the exemption for not calculating Interest Income
using Effective Interest Rate (EIR) as Bank has considered such calculation to be impracticable.
Accordingly, Bank has used Normal interest rate to charge interest income.

c. Interest calculation on Impaired Loan and advances
NAS 39 requires when a financial asset or a group of similar financial assets has been written
down as a result of an impairment loss, interest income is thereafter recognised using the rate
of interest used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment
loss. However, the Microfinance has charged interest income by applying the Normal interest
rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset unless the financial asset is written off
cither partially or fully.

Impairment of financial assets measured at amortized cost

The Microfinance considers evidence of impairment for loans and advances and investment
securities measured at amortized cost at both specific asset and collective level. The Microfinance
first assesses individually whether objective evidence of impairment exists for financial assets that
are individually significant and that are not individually significant are assessed on collectively.

If there is objective evidence on that an impairment loss has been incurred, the amount of the loss
is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an
allowance account and the amount of the loss is recognized in profit or loss. Interest income
continues to be accrued on the reduced carrying amount and is accrued using the rate of interest
used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss.

All individually significant loans and advances; and investment securities measured at amortized
cost found not to be specifically impaired and those that are not individually significant are
collectively assessed for impairment by grouping together loans and advances with similar risk
characteristics.

All individually significant loans and advances and investment securities are assessed for specific
impairment. Those found not to be specifically impaired are then collectively assessed for any
impairment that has been incurred but not yet identified. Loans and advances and held-to-maturity
investment securities that are not individually significant are collectively assessed for impairment
by grouping together loans and advances and held-to-maturity investment securities with similar
risk characteristics.

Impairment of loans and advances portfolios are based on the judgments in past experience of
portfolio behaviour. In assessing collective impairment, the Microfinance uses historical trends of
the probability of default, the timing of recoveries and the amount of loss incurred, adjusted for
management’s judgment as to whether current economic and credit conditions are such that the

femmeaw Fafaw o dwn fafree
Himalayan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited
e vy A cu bl g s fiedry s

A Subsidiary company of Himalayan Bank Limited



9y 3T arfyw gfedes
AT, 9. Rotq/5¥

actual losses are likely to be greater or less than suggested by historical trends. Default rates, loss
rates and the expected timing of future recoveries are regularly benchmarked against actual
outcomes to ensure that they remain appropriate.

Impairment losses on assets measured at amortized cost are calculated as the difference between
the carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the asset’s
original Normal interest rate.

Loans together with the associated allowance are written off when there is no realistic prospect of
future recovery and all collateral has been realized or has been transferred to the Microfinance. If
in a subsequent year, the amount of the estimated impairment loss increases or decreases because
of an event occurring after the impairment was recognized, the previously recognized impairment
loss is increased or reduced by adjusting the allowance account.

Impairment allowance for Loans and Advances

The Microfinance at each reporting date assesses whether there is objective evidence that loans and
advances carried at fair value through profit or loss are impaired and impairment provided for if
impairment assessment indicates so. Loans and advances are impaired when objective evidence
demonstrates that a loss event has occurred after the initial recognition of the asset(s), and that the
loss event has an impact on the future cash flows of the asset(s) that can be estimated reliably.

Objective evidence that loans and advances are impaired can include significant financial difficulty
of the borrower or issuer, default or delinquency by a borrower, restructuring of a loan or advance
by the Microfinance on terms that the Microfinance would not otherwise consider, indications that
a borrower or issuer will enter bankruptcy, the disappearance of an active market for a security, or
other observable data relating to a group of assets such as adverse changes in the payment status of
borrowers or issuers in the Microfinance, or economic conditions that correlate with defaults in the
Microfinance. In addition, for an investment in an equity security, a significant or prolonged decline
in its fair value below its cost is objective evidence of impairment.

In case of financial difficulty of the borrower, the Microfinance considers to restructure loans rather
than take possession of collateral. This may involve extending the payment arrangements and
agreement of new loan conditions. Once the terms have been renegotiated, any impairment is
measured using the Normal Interest rate as calculated before the modification of terms and the loan
is no longer considered past due. Management continually reviews renegotiated loans to ensure that
all criteria are met and that future payments are likely to occur. The loans continue to be subject to
an individual or collective impairment assessment, calculated using the loan’s Normal Interest rate.

Prior to this change in policy, the Microfinance used to provide for impairment loss of loans and
advances at 1% to 100% on the basis of classification of loans and advances in accordance with the
directives of Nepal Rastra Bank.

The Microfinance believes the new policy is preferable as it more closely aligns the accounting for
these transactions with the NFRS and will aid comparability.

4.7.3 Allowances for Impairment (Figures in NPR)

Particulars e Sl
32nd Ashadh 2082 31st Ashadh 2081

Specific allowance for impairment
Balance at Shrawan 1 51,248,104 37,154,114
Impairment loss for the year -
Charge for the year 41,757,488 14,093,989
Recoveries/reversal during the year -
Write-offs -
Exchange rate variance on foreign currency =
Other Movement -
Balance at Ashadh end 93,005,591 51,248,104
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Collective allowance for impairment -
Balance at Shrawan 1 22,915,115 12,678,989

Impairment loss for the year -
Charge/(reversal) for the year (3,528,534) 10,236,126

Exchange rate variance on foreign currency -
Other movement -
Balance at Ashadh end 19,386,581 22,915,115
Total Allowance for impairment 112,392,172 74,163,219

Policies Adopted

As per the Carve out notice issued by ICAN, the Microfinance has measured impairment loss on
loan and advances as the higher of amount derived as per norms prescribed by Nepal Rastra Bank
for loan loss provision and amount determined as per paragraph 58 - 65 and application on guidance
AG84 - AG92 of NAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, The microfinance
has made allowance for impairment as per NRB Directives.

4.8 Investment securities

Investments made by the Microfinance in financial instruments has been presented under this
account head in three categories i.e. investment securities designated at fair value through profit or
loss, investment securities measured at amortized cost and investment in equity measured at fair
value through other comprehensive income. Where income from the investment is received in the
form of bonus shares, the valuation of investment shall be made by increasing the number of shares
only without changing in the cost of investment.

Investment securities (Figures in NPR)
Particulars As at As at

e 32nd Ashadh 2082 31st Ashadh 2081
Investment securities measured at
Amortized cost 1,200,000 )
Investment Securities measured at . i
FVTOCI
Total 1,200,000 -

4.8.1 Investment securities measured at amortized cost

Detail of Investment Securities measured al amortized cost is as [ollows:

Investment securities measured at amortized cost (Figures in NPR)

As at As at

32nd Ashadh 2082 31st Ashadh 2081
Debt securities - -
Government bonds - -
Government treasury bills - -
Nepal Rastra Bank bonds - -
Nepal Rastra Bank deposits instruments - -
Other

Fixed Deposits - -
Less: specific allowances for impairment
Total - -

Particulars
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Investment in equity measured at FVTOCI

(Figures in NPR)

Particulars

As at
32nd Ashadh 2082

As at
31st Ashadh 2081

Equity instrument

Quoted equity instrument

Unquoted equity instrument

Total

4.8.3

Information relating to investment in equities

(Figures in NPR)

As at As at
Particulars 32nd Ashadh 2082 31st Ashadh 2081
Cost Fair value Cost Fair value
Investment in Quoted Equity
.......... Ltd.
...... Shares of Rs. ..... Each
.......... Ltd.
...... Shares of Rs. ..... Each
Total
Investment in Unquoted Equity
National Banking Institute Ltd.
12,000 Shares of Rs. 100 Each 1,200,000 1,200,000 - -
.......... Ltd.
...... Shares of Rs. ..... Each - -
Total 1,200,000 1,200,000 - -

Fair Value of National Banking Institute Ltd. (NBI) is not available as this is not traded in security

market so recognized at cost.

4.9 Current Tax Assets and Liabilities

(Figures in NPR)

Particulars

As at
32nd Ashadh 2082

As at
31st Ashadh 2081

Current Tax Assets

Current year income tax assets 61,586,702 18215471
Tax assets of prior periods

Sub Total 61,586,702 18,215,471

| Current Tax Liabilities

Current year income tax liabilities 36,624,898 2,190,678
Tax Liabilities of prior periods - 5344
Sub Total 36,624,898 2,196,022
Total 24,961,804 16,019,449

4.10 Investment Properties

Land or land and building other than those classified as property and equipment; and non-current
assets held for sale under relevant accounting standard has been presented under this account head.
This also includes land, land and building acquired as non-banking assets by the Microfinance but
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not sold. After I[nitial Recognition, the Microfinance chose either the fair value model to
subsequently measure Investment Properties. No Investment properties are measured at cost. The
detail of Investment properties measured at fair value is as follows:

(Figures in NPR)

As at As at
32nd Ashadh 2082 | 31st Ashadh 2081

Particulars

Investment Properties measured at fair value
Balance as on Shrawan 1 - -
Addition/Disposal during the year - -
Net changes in fair value during the year - -
Adjustment/Transfer - -
Net Amount - -
Investment Properties measured at cost
Balance as on Shrawan 1 - -
Addition/Disposal during the year - -
Adjustment/Transfer - -
Accumulated depreciation - -
Accumulated impairment loss - -
Net Amount - -
Total - -
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4,13 Deferred Tax Assets

Deferred tax assets recognized as per NFRSs on temporary deductible differences, carry forward
of unused tax losses, changes in tax rate etc. has been presented under this account head.

Figures in NPR
As at 32" Ashadh 2082
Net Deferred
Particalars Deferred Tax | Deferred Tax Tax
Assets Liabilities Assets/Liabili
ties

‘Deferred Tax on Temporary
differences on following items

Loans and Advances to B/Fls

Loans and Advances to customers

Investment Properties - - -

Investment Securities - - -
Property and equipment - 8,464,000 (8.,464,000)
Employees' defined benefit plan 14,728,859 - 14,728.859

Lease liabilities 8.840.524 - 8,840,524
Provisions - = =

Other temporary differences - - -
Deferred Tax on Temporary

. 23,569,383 8,464,000 15,105,384
differences
Deferred Tax on carry forward of unused
tax losses
Deferred tax due to changes in tax rate - - S
Net Deferred tax (asset)/liabilities as
on year end of 2080/081 ) ) 15,108,589
Deferred tax(asset)/liabilities as on
shrawan 1, 2080
Origination/(Reversal) during the year - - 2,494,900
Deferred tax expense/(income)

- - 12,610,484

recognised in profit or loss ) fl|  %719.106)
Deferred tax expense/(income)
recognised in other comprehensive - - 224,206
income
Deferred tax expense/(income) ) ) )
recognised directly in equity
Figures in NPR
As at 31*" Ashadh 2081
Deferred Net Deferred
Particulars Deterred Tax Tax Tax

Assets Liabilities | Assets/Liabilities

Deferred Tax on Temporary
differences on following items

Loans and Advances to B/Fls - - -

Loans and Advances to customers

Investment Properties

Himalayan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited
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Investment Securities - - -
Property and equipment - 9,999 475 (9,999 475)
Employees' defined benefit plan 12,593,183 - 12,593,183
Lease liabilities 10,016,775 - 10,016,775
Provisions - - -
Other temporary differences -
Deferred Tax on Temporary differences 22,609,959 9,999,475 12,610,484
Deferred Tax on carry forward of unused
tax losses

Deferred tax due to changes in tax rate - - -
Net Deferred tax (asset)/liabilities as on

vear end of 2080/81 i i TR29, 455
Deferred tax(asset)/liabilities as on
shrawan1, 2080 ) ) 8,946,556
Origination/(Reversal) during the year - - 3,663,528
Defen‘ed tax expense/(income) recognised i i (3,728,026)
in profit or loss

Deferred tax expense/(income) recognised
in other comprehensive income

Deferred tax expense/(income) recognised
directly in equity

: s 64,498

4.14 Other assets
Figures in NPR

Particulars As at As at
32" Ashadh 2082 31st Ashadh 2081

Assets held for sale - -
Other Non-Banking Assets - -
Bills Receivable - -
Accounts receivable 822.778 5,346,644
Accrued income - -
Prepayments and deposits 2,325,016 2,756,077
Income tax deposit - -
Deferred Employee Expenditure 5,587,921 3.902 835
Other - -
Fixed Deposits for CPF 14,647,907 15,455,465
Stationary Stock 1,434,265 1,044,277
Total 24,817,889 28,505,297

Fixed Deposits of CPF has been maintained in Everest Bank Ltd.
4.15 Due to Bank and financial institution

The balances in accounts maintained with the institution by other local and foreign banks and
financial institution has been presented under this head. Interbank borrowing, interbank deposit,
balances on settlement and clearing accounts as well as other amount due to bank and financial
institution has also been presented under this account head.

Figures in NPR
Particulars Ll s 4t
32" Ashadh 2082 31st Ashadh 2081

Borrowing from BFIs - =
Settlement and clearing accounts " N
Other 2 =
Total s =
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4.16 Due to Nepal Rastra Bank

This account head shall also contain the amount of payable to Nepal Rastra Bank. Amount
payable to NRB shall include amount of refinance facilities, standing liquidity facility, lender of
last resort, sale and repurchase agreements, deposit from NRB etc.

Figures in NPR

As at As at
. nd
Particulars 32 2“3;';““" 31st Ashadh 2081

Refinance from NRB . -
Standing liquidity facility - -
Lender of last report facility from NRB - -
Securities sold under repurchase agreement - -
Other payable to NRB - -

4.17 Derivative financial instruments
The derivative financial instruments held by the Microfinance during the year are as follows:

Figures in NPR
As at As at
32" Ashadh 2082 31st Ashadh 2081

Particulars

Held for trading

Interest rate swap - -
Currency swap - -
Forward exchange contract - -
Others - -
Held for risk management - -
Interest rate swap - -
Currency swap - -
Forward exchange contract - -
Others - -
Total - -

4.18 Deposits from Customers

All deposit accounts other than deposit from BFIs (local and foreign) and NRB has been
presented under this account head.

Figures in NPR
Particulars As at As at
32"! Ashadh 2082 31st Ashadh 2081

Institutions Customers: - -
Team deposits - -
Call Deposits - -
Other - :
Sub-total: - -
Individual Customers: - -
Team deposits - -
Saving Deposits 358,795,898 284,907,325
Saving from members 745,955,004 619,372,190
Other - 2
Sub-total: 1,104,750,903 904,279,515
Total 1,104,750,903 904,279,515
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4.19 Borrowing

Figures in NPR

Particulars . asat
32" Ashadh 2082 31st Ashadh 2081
Domestic Borrowing: - B
Nepal Government - -
Other licensed institution 3.828,103.650 2,602,697 955
Other . ,
Sub total 3,828,103,650 2,602,697,955
Foreign Borrowing: - -
Foreign Bank and Financial Institutions - -
Multilateral Development Bank = -
Other institutions - -
Sub total - -
Total 3,828,103,650 2,602,697,955
4.20 Provisions
Figures in NPR
Particulars As at XS 2t
32" Ashadh 2082 31st Ashadh 2081
Provisions for redundancy - -
Provision for restructuring - .
Pending legal issues and tax litigation - -
Onerous contract - -
Other - =
Total = 2
4.20.1. Movement in provision
Figures in NPR
As at As at

Particulars 320 Aghadh 2082

31st Ashadh 2081

Balance at shrawan 1°' 2080 =

Provisions made during the year -

Provisions used during the year -

Provisions reversed during the year -

Unwind of discount z
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4,21 Other liabilities

Figures in NPR

Particulars asat as at
32™ Ashadh 2082 31st Ashadh 2081

Llal_alllt_y for employees defined benefit 31,889,096 24,628.159
obligations
Liability for long-service leave 23,447 982 17,349,118
Short-term employee benefits 1,139,429 402,752
Bills payable . -
Creditors and Accruals 22,800,394 14,274,235
Interest payable on deposit 75,626,997 69,177,252
Interest payable on borrowing 7,255,708 6,620,292
Liabilities on deferred grant income 2 -
Unpaid Dividend - -
Liabilities under finance lease - .
Employee bonus payable 11,911,140 227,207
Service Charge Payable 15,988 4,114,154
Other - -

Payable to members - -

Lease Liabilities 29468 414 33,389,251

Other Liabilities 5,725,490 888,232
Total 209,280,637 171,070,656

The difference of Rs.69.82 (Rs. 70 after rounding off) on share capital has been re-classed on
the previous year balance of share capital and has been adjusted with other liabilities. This
rounding off error in share capital will be adjusted accordingly after finding the cause of error
with share registrar and management.

4.21.1 Defined benefit obligation

The Microfinance provides Pension & Gratuity Plan, Retirement Plan and Leave Encashment
Plan (in terms of Annual Leave and Sick Leave) as defined benefits to its employees. These
benefits are post-employment benefit plans and are paid based on length of service. These
benefit plans are funded whereas the Microfinance makes earmark investment of these funds.
The gratuity plan provides for lump sum payments to vested employees at retirement or upon
death while in employment or on termination of employment for an amount equivalent defined
days’ eligible salary payable for each completed year of service.

The pension plan provides for lump sum payments to vested employees at retirement or equated
payment till death of the employee. Further, employees of the Microfinance are entitled to avail
Annual Leave and Sick Leave. The employees can carry forward the un-availed leave and are
entitled to encash the cumulative leave at the time of the retirement. A qualified actuary
calculates the obligation under these plans every year using projected unit credit method. The
disclosure relating to defined benefit plans are as follows:

Figures in NPR

Particulars Asal Asa

32" Ashadh 2082 | 31st Ashadh 2081
Present value of funded obligations 31,889.096 24,628,160
Total present value of obligations 31,889,096 24,628,160
Fair value of plan assets m z
Present value of net obligations 31,889,096 24,628,160
Rec.:ognolsed liability for defined benefit 31,889,096 24,628,160
obligation

Himalayan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited
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Figures in NPR

Particulars

As at
32" Ashadh
2082

As at
31st Ashadh 2081

Equity securities

Government bonds

Bank deposits

Other

Total

4.21.3 Movement in the present value of defined benefit obligations

Figures in NPR

As at Abat
-~ nd
Particulars 32 zzaggadh 31st Ashadh 2081
Defined benefit obligation at Shrawan 1* 24,628,160 17,729,938
Actuarial (Gains) / losses (747.353) (214,993)
Benefit paid by the plan (847.473) (722.,594)
Current service cost and interest 8,855,762 7.835,809
Defined benefit obligation at Ashadh end 31,889,096 24,628,160
4.21.4 Movement in the fair value of plan assets Figures in NPR
As at As at
Particulars 32" Ashadh 31st Ashadh
2082 2081
Fair value of plan assets at Shrawan |* - -
Contributions paid into the plan - -
Benefit paid during the year - -
Actuarial (losses) gains - -
Expected return on plan assets - -
Fair value of plan assets at Ashadh end - -
4.21.5 Amount recognised in profit or loss Figures in NPR
As at As at
Particulars 32" Ashadh 31st Ashadh
2082 2081
Current service cost 6,523,580 6,152,671
Interest on obligation 2,332,182 1,683,138
Expected return on plan assets e 5
Total 8,855,762 7,835,809
4.21.6 Amount recognised in other comprehensive income Figures in NPR
As at As at
Particulars 32" Ashadh 31st Ashadh
2082 2081
Actuarial (gains) / losses (747,353) (214.993)
Total (747.353) (214,993)
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4.21.7 Actuarial assumptions

Figures in NPR

As at As at
Particulars 32" Ashadh 31st Ashadh
2082 2081
Discount rate 7.00% 10.00%
Expected return on plan assets - -
Future salary increased 4.00% 6.50%
Withdrawal rate - -
4.22 Debt securities issued Figures in NPR
As at As at
Particulars 32" Ashadh 31st Ashadh
2082 2081
Debt securities issued designated at fair value
through profit or loss i i
Debt securities issued at amortised cost - -
Total - -
4.23 Subordinated Liabilities Figures in NPR
Subordinated Liabilities has been issued by the Microfinance are as follows:
. As at As at
Particulars 329 Ashadh 2082 31st Ashadh
2081
Redeemable preference shares S =
Irredeemable cumulative preference shares - -
Other - -
Total - -
4.24 Share Capital Figures in NPR
As at 32nd As at 31st
Particulars Ashadh 2082 Ashadh 2081
Ordinary shares 319,818,130 319,818,130
Convertible preference share(Equity component)
Irredeemable preference share(Equity component)
Perpetual debt(Equity component only)
Total 319,818,130 319,818,130

The difference of Rs.69.82 (Rs. 70 after rounding off) has been re-classed on the previous year
balance of share capital and has been adjusted with other liabilities. This rounding off error in
share capital will be adjusted accordingly after finding the cause of error with share registrar

and management.

4.24.1 Ordinary Shares

Figures in NPR

Particulars As at As at

324 Ashadh 2082 | 31st Ashadh 2081
Authorized capital:
Ordinary shares of Rs. 100 each 400,000,000 400,000,000
Issued capital:
Ordinary shares of Rs. 100 each 319,818,130 319,818,130
Subscribed and paid of capital
Ordinary shares of Rs. 100 each 319,818,130 319,818,130
Total 319,818,130 319,818,130

ferera e e e fofiee

.. Himalayan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited
Tt 1y B cw b s s fiefe e
A Subsidiary company of Himalayan Bank Limited




9y 3T arfyw gfedes
AT, 9. Rotq/5¥

4.24.2 Ordinary share ownership Figures in NPR
As at As at
Particulars 32" Ashadh 2082 31st Ashadh 2081
Percent Amount Percent Amount
Domestic ownership (Promoter)
Nepal Government
"A" class licensed institution 51% 163,107,246 51% | 163,107,246
Other licensed institutions
Other institutions
Other
Domestic ownership (Public)
Nepal Government
"A" class licensed institution
Other licensed institutions
Other institutions
Other 49% 156,710,884 49% 156,710,884
Foreign ownership Promoter
Foreign ownership Public
Total 100% 319,818,130 100% 319,818,130
4.25 Reserves Figures in NPR
Particulars auss At
32" Ashadh 2082 31st Ashadh 2081
Statutory General Reserve 53,845,182 39,552,694
Restructured Loan Write back Reserve - 1,967,141
Exchange equalization reserve B -
Investment adjustment reserve = o
Corporate social responsibility reserve 737,854 67.469
Client protection Fund 15,427,734 14,266,226

Capital redemption reserve

Regulatory reserve

50,236,858

39,100,425

Assets revaluation reserve

Fair value reserve

Dividend equalization reserve

Actuarial reserve 2,731,026 2,207,879
Special reserve B -
Debenture redemption reserve e -
Other reserve - Employee Training 1,016,820

Fund -
Total 123,995475 97,161,835

4.25.1

General Reserve

General Reserve is created as per Section 44 of the Banks and Financial Institutions Act 2073
equivalent to 20% of the net profit earned during the year until the reserve is twice the paid-up
share capital of the Bank after which 10% of the net profit earned during the year shall be set
aside as General Reserve.

Such reserve could not be expensed or transferred to other heads without prior approval of
Nepal Rastra Bank.

Himalayan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited
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4.25.2 Exchange Equalization Reserve

Exchange Equalization Reserve is the reserve created as per Section 44 of the Banks and
Financial Institutions Act 2073 equivalent to 25% of the foreign exchange gain realized on the
translation of foreign currency to the reporting currency during the year other than Indian
Rupees.

Such reserve could not be expensed or transferred to other heads without prior approval of
Nepal Rastra Bank other than to set off revaluation loss incurred, if any during the year.

4.25.3 Investment Adjustment Reserve

It is a regulatory reserve created as a cushion for adverse price movements in bank's investments
as directed by the Directives of Nepal Rastra Bank.

4.25.4 Fair Value Reserve

The fair value reserve comprises the cumulative net change in the fair value of financial assets
that are measured at fair value and the changes in fair value is recognized in other
comprehensive income, until the assets are derccognized. The cumulative number of changes
in fair value of those financial assets has been presented under this account head.

4.25.5 Assets Revaluation Reserve

Any reserve created from revaluation of assets (such as Property & Equipment, Intangible
Assets, Investment (Property) has been presented under this heading. Revaluation reserves
often serve as a cushion against unexpected losses but may not be fully available to absorb
unexpected losses due to the subsequent deterioration in market values and tax consequences
of revaluation.

4.25.6 Regulatory Reserve

The amount that is allocated from profit or retained earnings of the Microfinance to this reserve
as per the Directive of NRB for the purpose of implementation of NFRSs and which has not
been regarded as free for distribution of dividend (cash as well as bonus shares) has been
presented under this account head. The amount allocated to this reserve includes interest income
recognized but not received in cash, difference of loan loss provision as per NRB directive and
impairment on loan and advance as per NFRSs (in case lower impairment is recognized under
NFRSs), amount equals to deferred tax assets, actuarial loss recognized in other comprehensive
income, amount of goodwill recognized under NFRSs etc.

4.25.7 Corporate Social Responsibility Fund

The fund created for the purpose of corporate social responsibility by allocating 1% of net profit
after tax has been presented under this account head.

The Fund has been utilized for the following Purposes during the year: Figures in NPR

Branch Program Amount
Khadgabhanjyang/Mailchaur gontnbutlon By Shese Gaureslswor Dham 30,000
: emple
; Global money Week in association with
Rajapur NMBA 5,000
; Global money Week in association with
Kaushilanagar NMBA 5,000
Devdaha Banner for Financial Literacy Program 500
Kanakpur Banner for Financial Literacy Program 400
Ganjbhawanipur Banner for Financial Literacy Program ' 550
Simichaur Banner for Financial Literacy Program 500
Bhathigach Banner for Financial Literacy Program | 360
Bankul Banner for Financial Literacy Program | 480
Malahitol Banner for Financial Literacy Program | 450
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Kolhuwa Banner for Financial Literacy Program 400
Dhaijan Banner for Financial Literacy Program 600
Total Expenses 44,240

4.25.8 Client Protection Fund

The fund created for the purpose of members by allocating 1.5% (Applicable for FY 2081-82)
of net profit after tax has been presented under this account head.

The Fund has been utilized for the following Purposes during the year: Figures in NPR
Purpose Number Amount
Relief for Natural Disaster affected members 10 55,000
Financial Literacy & Agricultural Skills Training 44270
Maternity Allowance 45 225.000
Total 55 324,270
4.26 Contingent Liabilities and Commitment Figures in NPR
Aunt As at
Particulars 32nd Ashadh 2082 SIStZ%E?adh

Contingent Liabilities . >
Undrawn and undisbursed facilities . -
Capital commitment : -
Lease commitment & .
Litigation - _
Total . %

4.26.1 Capital commitments

Capital expenditure approved by relevant authority of the institution but provision has not been

made n financial statements. Figures in NPR
As at As at

Particulars 32nd Ashadh 31st Ashadh
2082 2081

Capital commitments in relation to Property and Equipment
Approved and contracted for - -
Approved bur not contracted for - -
Sub total
Capital commitments in relation to Intangible assets
Approved and contracted for - -
Approved bur not contracted for - -
Sub total - -
Total - -
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4.26.2 Lease commitments Figures in NPR

As at As at

Particulars 32nd Ashadh 2082 | 31st Ashadh 2081

Operating lease commitments

Future minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating lease, where the institution
is lessee

Not later than 1 year - -
Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years - -
Later than S years - -
Subtotal B -
Finance lease commitments

Future minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating lease, where the institution
1s lessee

Not later than 1 year

Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years - &
Later than 5 years - -
Sub total - -
Grand Total - -

4.26.3 Litigation

There are no litigation against the company.

4,27 Interest Income

The interest income recognized as per NFRSs has been presented under this head. This includes
interest income on loan and advance, investment securities except on those investment securities
measure at fair value through profit or loss, cash and cash equivalent, due from Nepal Rastra
Bank, due from BFIs, loan and advances to staff etc.

Figures in NPR

. As at Asat
Particulars 32nd Ashadh 2082 313t£;l;adh
Cash and cash equivalents 638,777 1,134,261
Due from Nepal Rastra Bank - -
Placement with Banks and Financial Institutions - -
Loans and Advances to Financial Institutions - -
Loans and advances to customers 672,098,656 613,449,644
Investment securities - -
Loans and advances to stafl 645,647 907,664
Other - -
Total interest income 673,383,079 615,491,569

Under this, Rs. 669,652,833.36 is the interest income from loans and advance to customer as per
ECL, as per financials interest income from same is of Rs. 672,098.656. The difference of
Rs. 2,445 822 is the penal income not considered in ECL Report.
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4.28 Interest Expenses

The interest expenses recognized as per NFRS have been presented under this head. The interest
expenses include accrued on deposits collected, debt securities issued, borrowings obtained,
subordinated liabilities, amount due to bank and financial institutions, due to NRB etc.

Figures in NPR

7 As at i
Particulars 32nd Ashadh 2082 3Ist2:;|1|adh
Due to Bank and Financial Institutions - -
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank - -
Deposits from customers 77,728,348 73,441,898
Borrowing 224,760,502 319,322,590
Debt securities issued - -
Subordinated liabilities - -
Other - -
Total interest expense 302,488,850 392,764,488

4.29 Fees and Commission Income

Fee income is earned for diverse ranges of services provided by the Microfinance to its
customers. Fee income arises on the execution of a significant act completed or from provision
of services like service fees, Loan documentation fee, loan management fee, commitment fee,
remittance fee, investment banking fee, asset management fee etc.

Figures in NPR

Kot As at
Particulars 32nd Ashadh 2082 3lst2¢3£sgllladh

Loan Administration fees - -
Service fees 48,697 355 35,277,305
Commitment fees - -
Card Issuance fees - -
Prepayment and swap fees - -
Brokerage fees - -
Remittance fees -
Other Fees and Commission Income 5,275,849 10,657,690
Total Fees and Commission Income 53,973,204 45,934,995

4.30 Fees and Commission Expense

Payment on account of fee and commission for services obtained by the Microfinance has been
presented under this account head. This account head shall include card related fees, guarantee

commission, brokerage expenses etc. Figures in NPR
As at
Particulars 32nd At;:c:h 2082 31st Ashadh
2081
Brokerage - -
ATM management fees = =
VISA/Master card fees - -
Guarantee commission - -
Brokerage = =
DD/TT/Swift fees - -
Remittance fees and commission - -
Other Fees and Commission Expense 958,693 2,466,600
Total Fees and Commission Expense 958,693 2,466,600
Fewrerary eregfrer Pt sfear iz
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4,31 Net trading income

Trading income comprises gains less losses relating to trading assets and liabilities, and includes
all realized interest, dividend and foreign exchange differences as well as unrealized changes in
fair value of trading assets and liabilities has been presented under this account head.

Figures in NPR

Xt As at
Particulars 32nd Ashadh 2082 315t£;l;adh

Changes in fair value of trading assets - -
Gain/loss on disposal of trading assets - -
Interest income on trading assets - -
Dividend income on trading assets - -
Gain/Loss Foreign Exchange Transaction - -
Other - -
Total Net trading income - -

4.32 Other operating income

Receipt of all other operating income not specifically, provided under the income heads above
has been booked and presented under this head. This includes foreign exchange revaluation gain,
gain/loss on sale of available for sale securities, dividend on available for sale securities, gain/loss
on sale of property and equipment, gain/loss on sale of investment properties, operating lease
income, gain/loss on sale of gold and silver, income of Finance lease etc.

Figures in NPR
Ak As at
Particulars 33nd Ashadh 2082 31st213;llladh

Foreign Exchange Revaluation Gain - -
Gain/loss on sale of investment Securities = | -
Fair value gain/loss on investment property - -
Dividend on equity instruments % -
Gain/loss on sale of property and equipment - -
Gain/loss on sale of investment property - -
Operating lease income - -
Gain/loss on sale of gold and silver & <
Other - -
Total other operating income - -

4.33 Impairment charge/ (reversal) for loan and other losses

It includes impairment charge/reversal on loan and advances to customers, loan and advances to
bank and financial institutions, investment securities, placement with bank and financial
institutions, property and equipment, goodwill and intangible assets, investment properties etc.

Figures in NPR
As at As at
32nd Ashadh 2082 | 31st Ashadh 2081

Particulars

Impairment charge/(reversal) on loan and
advances to B/FIs

Impairment charge/(reversal) on loan and
advances to customer

38,228,954 | 24,330,115
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Impairment charge/(reversal) on financial -
Investment
Impairment charge/(reversal) on placement -
with bank and financial institutions
Impairment charge/(reversal) on property and -
equipment
Impairment charge/(reversal) on goodwill -
and intangible assets
Impairment charge/(reversal) on investment -
property

Total impairment charge/(reversal) for
loan and other losses

38,228,954 24,330,115

4.34 Personnel Expense

All expenses related to employees of the Microfinance has been included under this head.
Expenses covered under this head include employees' salary, allowances, pension, gratuity,
contribution to provident fund, training expenses, uniform expenses, insurance, staff bonus,
Microfinance expense under NFRSs, cash-settled share-based payments etc.

Figures in NPR

: As at As at

Particulars 32nd Ashadh 2082 315t2%;Il|adh

Salary 85.010,766 79.262.406
Allowances 64,733,852 60.310.275
Gratuity expenses 8,855,762 7,835,809
Provident fund 8.500.141 7,926,401
Uniform 2,940,000 2,780,000
Training & Development Expense 3,253,760 4,285,707
Leave encashment 11,656,491 9,475,743
Medical - -
Insurance 1.019.750 930,751
Employees Incentive - -
Cash-settled share-based payments - -
Pension Expense - B
Finance expenses under NFRS = =
Other Expenses Related to Staff 37,000 60,000
Subtotal 186,007,523 172,867,092
Employees Bonus 11,707,582 -
Total personal expenses 197,715,104 172,867,092

4.35 Other operating expense

All operating expense other than those relating to personnel expense are recognized and
presented under this account head. The expenses covered under this account head includes office
administration expense, other operating and overhead expense, directors' emoluments,
remuneration and non-audit fee paid to auditors, professional and legal expense, branch closure
cost expense, redundancy cost expense, expense of restructuring, impairment of non-financial
assets, expense of corporate social responsibility, onerous lease provisions etc.
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Figures in NPR

2 As at peal
Particulars 32nd Ashadh 2082 SIStZ%;:adh
Directors' fee 654,000 603,000
Directors' expense 165,513 158,245
Auditors' remuneration 734,500 734,500
Other audit related expense 668.769 472214
Professional and legal expense 360,552 81,752
Office administration expense 61,452,502 52,035,513
Operating lease expense 347,018 28,368
Operating expense of investment propertics - -
Corporate Social Responsibility Expense - 336,715
Client Protection expense - -
Onerous lease provision - -
Other 53,598 123,012
Total other operating expense 64,436,452 54,573,319

4.35.1 Office Administration Expenses

Office Administration expenses is the expenses incurred in the operation of the organization
specifically incurred by the office. It includes water and electricity, repair and maintenance,
insurance, printing and stationery, newspaper, advertisement, donation, security, deposit and
guarantee premium, travel allowance and expenses, entertainment, annual general/special
general meeting expenses, internet expenses, etc.

Figures in NPR

Particulars Asal Aeat
32nd Ashadh 2082 | 31st Ashadh 2081
Water and electricity 954,942 903,078
Repair and maintenance - -
(a) Building - -
(b) Vehicle 457,766 412,121
(¢) Computer and accessories 293,170 260,090
(d) Office equipment and furniture 52,695 59,840
(e) Other 3,250,663 1,778,732
Insurance 1,186,840 1,111,775
Postage, telex, telephone, fax 2.930,583 2,425,405
Printing and stationery 3,163,479 2,878,944
Newspaper, books and journals 12,390 13,300
Advertisement 659,790 894 940
Donation - -
Security expense - -
Deposit and loan guarantee premium 19,001,984 12,373,895
Travel allowance and expense 1.654 409 8,279,999
Office Expenses 467,994 303,558
Annual/special general meeting expense 526,107 399,931
Other - -
Website - -
Software AMC 474,732 493 440
Duties and Taxes 1,101,697 92,865
Fuel Expenses 8,368,624 4,187,428
Office Consumables 494 599 721,477
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Annual Day Celebration Expenses 454,300 455,560
Registration and renewal 1,307 457 1,144 674
Interest unwinding of lease liabilities 3,505,871 1,918,218
Share Register expenses - 399.898
Other Casual Labor Wages 11,132,410 10,526,344
Total 61,452,502 52,035,513

4.36 Depreciation & Amortisation

Depreciation is the systematic allocation of the depreciable amount of an asset over its useful
life. Amortization is the systematic allocation of the depreciable amount of an intangible asset
over its useful life. Depreciation measured and recognized as per NFRSs on property and
equipment, and investment properties, and amortization of intangible assets has been presented
under this account head.

Figures in NPR

Particulars Haa o

32nd Ashadh 2082 | 31st Ashadh 2081
Depreciation on Property and Equipment 17,997,816 17,513,703
Depreciation on investment property 2 <
Amortization of intangible assets 124 372 415,853
Total 18,122,188 17,929,557

4.37 Non-operating income

The income and expenses that have no direct relationship with the operation of transactions of
the Microfinance has been presented under this head. The income/expense covered under this
account head includes loan written off, recovery of loan, redundancy provision, expense of
restructuring etc.

Figures in NPR
As at As at
32nd Ashadh 2082 | 31st Ashadh 2081
Recovery of loan written off - -

Particulars

Other income - 14,721

Total non-operating income - 14,721

4.38 Non-operating Expenses Figures in NPR
Particulars As 8 X6 at

32nd Ashadh 2082 | 31st Ashadh 2081

Loan Written Off - -

Redundancy provision - -

Expenses of restructuring - =

Other expense 37,808 49 829

Total non-operating Expenses 37,808 49.829

4.39 Income tax Expense

The amount of income tax on net taxable profit has been recognized and presented under this
account head. This account head shall include current tax expense and deferred tax

LR R T
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Figures in NPR

Particulars Aga At
% 32nd Ashadh 2082 | 31st Ashadh 2081
Current tax expense 36,624,898 2,196,022
Current year 36,624,898 2,190,678
Adjustment for prior years - 5.344
Deferred tax expense (2,719,106) (3,728,026)
Qnglnatlon and reversal of temporary (2.719.106) (3.728.026)
differences
Changes in tax rate - -
Recognition of previously unrecognized tax - )
losses
Total income tax expense 33,905,792 (1,532,004)
4.39.1 Reconciliation of tax expense and accounting profit

Figures in NPR

Particular As at As at
articutars 32nd Ashadh 2082 | 31st Ashadh 2081
Profit before tax 105,368,235 (3,539,715)
Tax amount at tax rate of 30% 31,610,470 (1,061,915)
Add: Tax effect of expenses that are not i )
deductible for tax purpose
Less: Tax effect on exempt income - -
Add/less: Tax effect on other items 5,014,428 3,257,936
Total income tax expense 36,624,898 2,196,022
Effective tax rate 34.76% -62.04%
Statement of Distributable Profit or loss
For the year ended 32nd Ashadh 2082 (16 July 2025)
As per NRB regulation

Figures in NPR
Particulars Current Year | Previous Year
Net Profit/(loss) as per Statement of Profit or Loss 71,462,442 (2,007,711)
Appropriation -
a. General Reserve (14,292 488) -
b. Foreign Exchange Fluctuation fund - -
c. Capital redemption reserve - -
d. Corporate social responsibility fund (714.,624) -
e. Employees training fund (1,016,820) s
f. Customer Protection Fund (1,071,937) -
g. Other - -
Profit/(loss) before regulatory adjustment 54,366,573 | (2,007,711) |
Regulatory Adjustments: -
a. Interest Receivable (-)/previous accrued interest
received(+) (8,641,533) 211,919
b. Short loan loss provision in accounts(-)/reversal(+) - -
c¢. Short provision for possible losses on investment
(-)/reversal(+) - -
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d. Short provision for possible losses on Non-Banking
Assets (-)/reversal(+) . .

e. Deferred Tax Assets recognized(-)/reversal (+) (2,494 .900) (3,663,528)
f. Goodwill recognized (-)/Impairment of Goodwill(+) - -
g. Bargain purchase gain recognized (-)/reversal(+) - -
h. Actuarial Loss recognized (-)/reversal(+) - -
i. Other (+/-) - -

'-Corporate Social Responsibility Expenses (Return
Back) - 336,715

'-Restructured Reserve 1,967,141 (1,967.141)

Net Profit for the year end 32nd Ashadh 2082
available for distribution 45,197,281 (7,089,747)

Opening Retained Earning As on st Shrawan 208 (6,546,039) 543,707
Adjustments(+/-) -
Distribution: -
Bonus Share issued - -
Cash Dividend Paid - :
Total Distributable profit or (loss) as on year end 38,651,242 (6,546,039)
Annualized Distributable Profit/Loss Per Share 12.09 (2.05)

5 Disclosures & Additional Information
5.1 Risk Assessment and Management
Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Microfinance may be unable to meet short term financial
demands. This usually occurs due to the inability to convert a security or hard asset to cash
without a loss of capital and/or income in the process.

Factors of Liquidity Risk includes Deterioration in quality of credit portfolio Concentrations in
either assets or liabilities, Rapid asset growth funded by highly volatile large deposits, A large
size of off-balance sheet exposure.

The Microfinance has applied following mitigates for the management of Liquidity Risk:
Appropriate composition of assets and liabilities

Diversified and stable sources of funds

Access to inter-bank market

Contingency funding plan for crisis situations

Regular stress testing

Cushion of liquid assets held

Consistent analysis using liquidity ratios

Review of Deposit Mix Concentration.

Such mitigates are monitored by BOD, Finance and Credit Department, Internal Audit
Department.

Credit Risk

A credit risk is the risk of default on a debt that may arise from a borrower failing to make
required payments. In the first resort, the risk is that of the lender and includes lost principal and
interest, disruption to cash flows, and increased collection costs. Factors for the credit risk include
Counterparty Risk, Concentration Risk and Securitization Risk.
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The Microfinance has applied following mitigates for management of Credit Risk factors:
e Independent and ongoing credit quality review
e Limiting credit exposures
e Problem credit management system
e Diversification of risk asset portfolio among several sectors and sub sectors of the

economy over a large number of customers

e Deposit of borrower in bank, cash margin and additional collateral at individual level
e Proper valuation, storage, maintenance and insurance of collaterals.

Such mitigates are monitored by Board of Directors, Risk Management Committee which is
Board Level Committee, Credit Risk Management Department, NRB Inspection team and
Internal Audit Department of the Microfinance

Fair value of Financial Assets and Liabilities

Fair Value of financial assets and liabilities risk management includes effective portfolio
management by finance department which is monitored by BOD, and other high-level officials

5.2 Capital Management

The capital management approach of the Microfinance is driven by its desire to maintain a strong
capital base to support the development of its business and to meet the regulatory capital
requirements at all times.

As Capital i1s the centrepiece of the Microfinance’s performance matrix, a sound capital
management forms the very core of the overall performance landscape to ensure that the
Microfinance delivers on its objective of maximizing the shareholder’s value. The senior
management of the Microfinance is engaged and responsible for prudent capital management at
all times. In compliance with the regulatory requirement of increasing the capital base as
prescribed by the Central Bank, the Microfinance is comfortable in meeting the minimum capital
requirements and is strongly positioned to meet the performance benchmarks.

1. Capital Structure and a Breakdown of its Components:
Tier 1 Capital and a breakdown of its components is as follows:

(Rs. In "000)
L Period
A | Peartinnan Current Previous
1 | Paid up Capital (ordinary shares) 319,818.13 319,818.13
2 | Proposed bonus share - -
3 | Share premium _ 45,543.05 45,543.05
4 | Irredeemable preferential share - -
5 | General Reserve Fund 53.845.18 39.552.69
6 | Accumulated profit/(loss) 38,651.24 (6,546.04)
7 | Profit & loss a/c as per balance-sheet _ =\ =
8 | Capital Redemption Reserve Fund - -
9 | Capital Adjustment Fund - -
10 | Calls in advance - -
11 | Other Free Reserves = | -
Deductions: -

a | Goodwill
b [ Deferred tax assets 15,105.38 12,610.48
b | Investment on shares and securities in excess

of limits - -
¢ | Investment to the company having financial

interests - -
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d | Fictitious Asset - -
e | Investment on land and building for self-use
not complying the Directives of NRB - -
f | Investment on land development and housing
construction in excess of limits - -
g | Underwriting share not sold within the
stipulated time - -
h | Credit and other facilities banned by the
prevailing laws - -
Total Core Capital (A) 442,752.22 385,757.35
Tier 2 Capital and a breakdown of its components is as follows:
(Rs. In "000)
Period
S. i g
N. Description
Current Previous
1 Provisions of loan loss made for pass loan 11,370.74 22.915.1 1
2 | Additional loan loss provision 69.15 21.428.33
3 | Hybrid capital instruments - -
4 | Unsecured Subordinated Term Debt - -
5 | Exchange Equalization Fund - -
6 | Assets revaluation Fund (max. 2% of
Supplementary capital is added automatically) - -
7 | Investment adjustment Fund - -
Total Supplementary Capital (B) 11,439.89 44,343.45
| C. | Total Capital Fund (A+B) | 454,192.10 |  430,100.80 |

D. | Minimum capital Fund to be maintained based on Risk Weighted Assets:

1 | Minimum Capital Fund Required (8.0 % of RWA) 425,672.11 321,340.55

2 | Minimum Core Capital Required (4.0 % of RWA) 212,836.06 160,670.28

3 | Capital Fund maintained (in %) 8.54% 10.71%

4 | Core Capital maintained (in %) 8.32% 9.60%

2. Statement of Risk Weighted Assets (RWA)
A. On Balance Sheet Items
(Rs. In ‘000)
Description Weight (%) Cwreem pesiod Previous period
Amount RWA Amount RWA

Cash Balance 0 49796 - 351.45 -
Gold (Tradable) 0 5
NRB Balance 0  24.000.00 - 23,000.00 -
Investment to Govt. Bond 0 - = 5 7
Invesiment to NRB Bond 0 - - -
Loan against Own FD 0 - - i -
Loan against Govt. Bond 0 - - . =
Accrued mterests on Govt. bond 0 - - -
Investment to Youth and Small Entrepreneurs Self- 0 } ]
employment Fund
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Balance on domestic banks and financial institutions 20f 638.089.48| 127.617.90 277,663.17 55.532.63
Loan against other banks' and financial institutions' FD 20 . - - -
Foreign bank balance 20 J = a .
Money at call 20 - = % 3
Loan against internationally rated bank guarantee 20 - - - -
Investment to internationally rated Banks , 20 -| | - -
Inter-bank lending ] 20 = £ 5 3
Investment on shares/debentures/bonds 100 1,200.00 1,200.00 & =
Other investments 100] 14.647.91 14,647.91 -
Loans & advances, bills purchase/discount 100]4,948,342.16|4.948,342.16| 3.775,911.42| 3,775911.42
Fixed assets 100]  45.774.07) 45,774.07 47,534.98 47,534.98

Net interest receivables (Total IR - 8 - Interest 100 59.746.52 50.746.52 42.047.53 42.047.53

suspense)
Net Non-Banking Asset 100 - - = =
Other assets (Except advance tax payment) 100

10,169.98|  10.169.98 13.049.83 13,049.83
Real estate/residential housing loans exceeding the 150
limits - i - -

TotsbXin-Ralance-sheet Thems (4) 5.742,468.07|5,207.498.53| 4,179,558.39| 3.934,076.40

B. Off Balance Sheet Items
(Rs. In ‘000)

Description “::eoig)ht Current period Previous period
Amount RWA Amount RWA
Bills collection 0 - - - J
Forward foreign exchange contract 10 = = 2 ]
L/C with maturity less than six months 20 ) i i ]
(Outstanding value)
Guarantee against International rated bank's 20 ] i J 1
counter guarantee
L/C with maturity more than six months 50 i i } |
(Outstanding value)
Bid bond, performance bond and underwriting 50 - = = =
Loan sale with repurchase agreement 50 - - - 5
Advance payment guarantee 100 - - - -
Financial and another guarantee 100 - - - <
Irrevocable loan commitment 100 - - g -
Possible liabilities for income tax 100 - - - -
All types of possible liabilities including 100 ] _ ] 1
acceplance
Rediscounted bills 100 - = = =
Unpaid portion of partly paid share invesiment 100 - - - -
Unpaid guarantee claims 200 - - = =
é’;‘:’;’?}r‘;’uﬂe A“::::’t‘;‘;‘med i e ot 100 113402.86| 113.402.86| 82,695.28|  82,695.28
et o 113,402.86| 113402.86] 82,695.28|  82,695.28
LBl BBk Meihied sssb (a1 (8) 5,855,870.93| 5.320.901.3{ 4,262.253.67| 4.016,771.68

3, Amount of NPAs (Both Gross and Net)

S. 5 Gross NPA Loan-Loss Provision
Particulars Net NPA .
No. (Rs.) (Rs.) e
a. Substandard 36,885,899 2,305,369 34,580,530
b. | Doubtful 14,157,982 1,769,748 12,388,234
C. Bad 317,640,657 88,861,324 228,779,332
Total 368,684,538 92,936,441 275,748,096
4. NPA Ratios:
» Gross NPA to Gross Advances - 7.48%
» Net NPA to Net Advances 1 5.72%
femmeaw Fafaw o dwn fafree

Himalayan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited
e vy Bz +u kol garEeare sy fefr s
A Subsidiary company of Himalayan Bank Limited



9y 3T arfyw gfedes
AT, 9. Rotq/5¥

5. Write off of Loans and Interest Suspense
No loans were written off during the fiscal year 2024-25.

6. Movements in Loan Loss provision and Interest Suspense:

Particulars Loan Loss Provision Interest Suspense
Opening balance 74,163,219 85,410,480
Write Back/off in the years

Addition in the year 38,228,954 23,445,559
Balance as at 16" July 2025 112,392,173 108,856,039

7. Risk Management Function

Himalayan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited (HLBSL) is exposed to various types of risks
including credit, market, liquidity, operational, legal, compliance and reputation risks. The
objective of the risk management framework at the Microfinance is to ensure that various risks are
understood, measured and monitored and that the policies and procedures established to address
these risks are strictly adhered to the Microfinance has set up a strong control and monitoring
environment for comprehensive risk management at all levels of operation.

Measurement of Risks for Capital Adequacy Purpose:

Under Pillar 1 of the specific NRB guidelines, the Microfinance company currently follows
Simplified Standardized Approach for Credit Risk, Basic Indicator Approach for Operational Risk
and Net Open Position approach for Market risk.

A. Credit Risk
Strategies and Process:

All credit related aspects are governed by Operation Manual of HLBSL. These documents outline
the type of products that can be offered, customer categories, credit approval process and limits.
These documents are approved by the Board of directors.

The Microfinance Company’s main emphasis is on SME credit. Different limits of lending power
have been assigned at branch level, department head level and the credit committee level. Every
aspect relating to credit such as procedure, documentation etc. are clearly defined in the Operation
Manual and the Credit Policy of the Microfinance.

Pre-Sanction:

The branch managers have the authority to approve the credit within their permissible limits after
due scrutiny of background of the promoter, nature of business, turnover in the account, other
financial indicators, income, collateral and security. Loans above the authority of branch are
recommended to head office for further decision.

Credit Risk Assessment Process:

Risk Management Department carries out a comprehensive credit risk assessment process that
encompasses analysis of relevant quantitative and qualitative information to ascertain credit rating
of the borrower. The credit rating process involves assessment of risk emanating from various
sources such as market risk, management risk, environmental risk, financial risk and security risk
taking into consideration as much as 30 sub-parameters under each of these categories. Credit
thresholds have been set for forwarding the credit files for risk rating before they are submitted for
approval in the credit committee by the concerned credit units.
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Post Sanction Monitoring/ Follow up:

Concerned branch are required to obtain regular information of the business. In case of revolving
loans, the drawing power is checked commensurate with the existing level of stocks and working
capital checked and verified at regular interval. The credit units at the Head Office are also required
to prepare quarterly credit report to submit at higher level as a part of formal monitoring process.

B. Operation Risk

Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes, people or
systems, or from external events. Operational risk is inherent in the Microfinance’s business
activities.

The board level committee that undertakes supervision and review of operational risk aspects are
the Risk Management Committee and Audit Committee. The board and the risk commiltee review
the operational risk level and the material operational risk exposure. The Audit committee
supervises audit and compliance related aspects. Internal Audit department on the other hand carries
out audit according to the audit plan and reports findings to the audit committee.

Risk Arising from breakdown of Information and Operating System:

The Microfinance has implemented centralized software Empower Accounting Software and has
improved in its MIS infrastructure in order to ensure the associated operational risks being brought
down to an acceptably low level.

To safeguard the probable losses resulting from system failure or natural disaster, the Microfinance
has taken following policies to minimize the risk:
a. Back up — Daily back up of all balances are taken at the end of the day. the Microfinance
is developing a system of auto back up in the near future.
Disaster Recovery Site — the Microfinance has established disaster recovery site.
Validation of Entry and Password control — There is a system of maker and checker for
entry validation before posting. Access authority for data entry, update, modification and
validation has been given on the basis of levels of staffs.
d. Exception Reporting — The system creates exception report as and when required.

Risk Arising from Procedural Lapses and Internal control:

The company has defined every banking procedure in the Operation Manual related to banking
transactions. Internal circulars are issued whenever required. Reporting by branches is regular.

Corporate Governance:

NRB Guidelines with respect to Corporate Governance are duly complied with.

femmeaw Fafaw o dwn fafree
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C. Market Risk

a. Investments
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Currently the Company has not made any investment for trading purpose. The investment
in government securities have been made to hold till maturity. The investment in equity of
listed institutions has been held as available for sale.

b. Foreign Exchange

The company’s policy is to maintain the net open position of convertible foreign currency
where exchange rate risk persists in matching position.

Classification of financial assets and financial liabilities

. Fair Value Amortized Fair Value

FaicATs throughPL |  Cost | throughocr | 1@l
Financial Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents -|  638,587.437 -| 638,587,437
Due from Nepal Rastra Bank - 24,000,000 - 24,000,000
Loans and advances to B/FIs - - - -
Loans and advances to customers

“| 4.895.696,504 -14.895.765,654
Investment securities (Govt.
&Development Bonds) § i T 1
Investment securities (Equity) - 1,200,000 - 1,200,000
Other Financial assets -l 24,943,133 -l 24943133
Total financial Assets - 5,584,445,744 -15,583,296,224
Financial Liabilities: - - -
Due to Bank and Financial Institutions - - - -
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank - - - -
Deposits from customers - 1,104,750,903 - 1,104,750,903

Other Financial Liabilities

4,037,391,132

4,037,391,132

Debt securities issued

Total financial Liabilities

5,142,142,035

5,142,142,035

5.4 Operating segment Information

1. General Information

a) The Microfinance’s operation is managed centrally through Head Office. All strategic,
financial and operational policies and operations are controlled and directed from the head
office. The microfinance operates in 75 branches though has a single jurisdiction.

b) The Microfinance has identified following segments as reportable:

a. Banking Segment involves functions like collecting deposits and lending
activities among other similar activities.
b. Treasury Segment involves short term and long-term investment activities like

investing in T-Bills, Bonds, Shares of companies ctc.

¢. Remittance Segment involves activities of transferring / receiving funds locally

and/or globally.

There is no inter-unit cost transfer mechanism within the microfinance.

2. Information about profit or loss, assets and liabilities are presented below:

(Figures in NPR)

Particulars

Banking

Treasury

Remittance

All Other Segments

a. Revenues from
external customers

721,441,657

5,914,626

b. Intersegment
revenucs
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¢. Net Revenue

d. Interest revenue

e. Interest Expense

f. Net interest
revenue (b)

g. Depreciation and
amortization

h. Segment Profit /
(Loss)

1. Other Material non-
cash item

k. Impairment of
assets

l. Segment Assets

m. Segment liabilities

721,441,657 | 5,914,626 - =
672,744,303 638,777 - -
302,488,850 - - =

370,255,453 638,777 - =

370,255,453 638,777 - -

41,463,141 . : :

5,556,249,754 - - c
4,932,854,553 - - B

An entity shall disclose the following about each reportable segment if the specified amounts
are included in the measure of segment assets reviewed by the chief operating decision maker
or are otherwise regularly provided to the chief operating decision maker

a). Amounts of additions to non-current assets other than financial instruments, deferred tax
assets, post-employment benefit assets and rights arising under insurance contracts.

8. Reconciliation of reportable segment revenues, profit or loss, assets and liabilities:

a) Revenue

Total revenue of reportable segments 727,356,283
Other revenue -
Elimination of intersegment revenue =
Entity's revenues 727,356,283
b) Profit or Loss
Total profit or loss for reportable segments 370,255,453
Other profit or loss (264,824,983)
Elimination of intersegment profits =
Unallocated amounts: -
Profit before income tax 105,430,470
¢) Assets
Total assets for reportable segments 5,556,249,754
Other assets -
Unallocated amounts 113,893.330
Entity's assets 5,670,193.563
d) Liabilities
Total liabilities for reportable segments 4,932,854,553
Other liabilities 209.287.482
Unallocated liabilities c
Entity's liabilities 5,142,142,035
femmeaw Fafaw o dwn fafree
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8.7

S.N. Name Relationship Dz,te of D.ate of
appointment retirement
1 |Mr. Bijaya Man Nakarmi  |Chairman 2081.07.18 -
2 Mr_. Subasan Harsha Director 2081.07.18 -
Bajrachrya
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9. Information about product and service

Revenue from each type of product and services described in point 1 (b) above.

Banking 721,441,657
Treasury 5,914,626
Remittance -

10. Information about geographical area

Revenue from following geographical areas

a) | Domestic Revenue (Rs.)
Province 1 XXXX
Province 2 Xxxx
Bagmati Province Xxxx
Gandaki Province Xxxx
Lumbini Province XXXX
Karnali Province Xxxx
SudurPaschim Province XXXX

b) | Foreign Xxxx
Total XXXX

11. Information about major customer:
Revenue from the single external customer is less than 10 percent of the bank’s total revenue.
Share options and share based payment
There is no share-based payment made by the Microfinance.
Contingent Liabilities and Commitments

Litigation is a common occurrence in the banking industry due to the nature of business
undertaken. The Microfinance company has formal controls and policies for managing legal
claims. Once professional advice has been obtained and the amount of loss reasonably estimated,
the microfinance makes adjustment to account for adverse effect which the claims may have on
its financial standing. Contingent liabilities on other matters have already been disclosed in notes
4.28.

Related party

The related parties of the Microfinance which meets the definition of related parties as defined in
“NAS 24 Related Parties Disclosure” are as follows:

i. Key Management Personnel (KMP)

The key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility of planning,
directing and controlling the activities of the entity, directly or indirectly including any director.
The key management of the Microfinance includes members of its Board of Directors, Chief
Executive Officer, and others higher-level employee of the Microfinance. The name of the key
management personnel who were holding various positions in the office during the year were as
follows:

Himalayan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited
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g | M hatn Sireiite Director 2081.07.18 .
4 |Mr. Rudra Prasad Dahal Director 2079.10.09 -
5 féﬁ?ﬁﬁhm Frasad Director 2081.08.27 -
6 ygéligigb;“i:rasad Director 2081.08.27 -
7 [Ms.Suntacharya Director 2081.12.05

7 |Mr. Binod Acharya Chiefl Executive Officer| 2081.04.01 -

ii.  Group of Companies

The entity and the reporting entity are members of the same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the others.

I\?(.:. Name Relationship
L Himalayan Bank Limited Parent Company

2. Himalayan Capital Limited Subsidiary of Parent Company
3. Himalayan Securities Limited Subsidiary of Parent Company

5.71 Compensation to Key Management Personnel

The members of Board of Directors are entitled for meeting allowances. Salary and allowances
are provided to Chief Executive Officer and other member of Key Management Personnel
(KMP). Salary and Allowances paid to the Chief Executive Officer is based on the contract
entered by the Microfinance with him whereas compensation paid to other member of KMP are
governed by Employees Byelaws and decisions made by management time to time in this
regard. In addition to salaries and allowances, non- cash benefits like vehicle facility, subsidized
rate employees’ loan, termination benefits are also provided to KMP.

The details relating to compensation paid to key management personnel (directors only) were

as follows:

S. No. | Particulars No of Meetings Meeting Fees (NPR)

1 Board Meeting 1] 484,000

2 Audit Committee Meeting 6 80,000

3 Risk Management Committee 4 40,000
Assets Money Laundering

4 Prevention Committee 4 20,000
Meeting
Employee Service & Benefit

5 Allowance 6 30,000

The details relating to compensation paid to key management personnel other than directors
were as follows:
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Particulars Amount
Short term employee benefits (including Bonus and Paid 5,046,000
Leave)

Vehicle Facility Yes
Other Benefits -

Other long-term benefits -
Post-Employment -

Other benefits and payments include Finance cost calculated towards subsidized Loans and
advances provided to staffs.

Post-employment benefit includes Provident fund, Gratuity and Leave provision created, the
bifurcation of which is not quantifiable separately to KMPs. The provision is made on lump
sum as per the Actuarial Valuation.

5.7.2 Transaction with Group of Company

Transactions with Parent Company

:’0 Particulars Relationship Amount

I Borrowing from Himalayan Bank Parent 1,917,678.222.91
Limited

5 I]:Eteljest paid to Himalayan Bank Parent 66.581.659.48
Limited

3 B_anl_c Balance on Himalayan Bank it 452.635.645.22
Limited

4 Sqmce Charge on Borrowings — Bunui 46243
Himalayan Bank

Transactions with Parent Company
S. No. | Particulars Relationship Amount
: ; Subsidiary Company
1 Rogistrar to.Shave —~Himalayan | e privntiovan Baiik 150,000.00
Capital Ltd. L
Limited.

5.8 Merger and acquisition

Additional Disclosure of Non-consolidated entities

n

Since, the Microfinance Company does not have any subsidiaries, there are no such non-
consolidated entities.

5.10 Events after reporting date.

There are no material events that have occurred subsequent to 32nd Ashad 2082 till the signing
of this financial statement.
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5.11

5.12

Loan Loss Provision as per NRB Directives No. 2

(Figures in NPR)

Category Loan Amount Provision Amount
Good 4,037,198,516 10,813,386
Watchlist 44587931 557.349
Restructured-performing 442 631,696 5.564,551
Restructured- Non performing 34,615,794 2,451,295
Substandard 36,885,899 2,305,369
Doubtful 14,157,982 1,769,748
Bad 317,640,657 88,861,324
Total 4,927,718,475 112,323,022
Additional 69,150
Grand Total 4,927,718,475 11,23,92,172

Disclosure of Shareholders holding more than 0.5% of total Shareholding

Name of Shareholder Number of Share | Holding % Amount
Himalayan Bank Limited 1,631,073 51.00% | 163,107282
NIBL Sahabhagita Fund 47,296 1.48% 4,729,600
Nagarik Stock Dealer Company 25,390 0.79% 2,539,000
Limited
Parshuram Kunwar Chhetri 19,619 0.61% 1,961,900
United Ajod Insurance Limited. 17,769 0.56% 1,776,900
Prabhu Cablecar And Tourism 17,509 0.55% 1,750,900

Ltd
Basanta Kunwar 16,273 0.51% 1,627,300
Total 1,774,929 55.50% 177,492,882
5.13 Additional Disclosure for Accrued Interest Receivable (AIR)
Statement showing AIR Adjustment
2080.81
AIR closing as on 2081/03/31 85,410,480
Less: AIR of loan and advance overdue for more than 90 43.362.954
days
AIR to be booked till date 42,047,526
AIR already booked till 2080/03/31 42 383,905
Interest income to be Booked (336,379)
2081.82
AIR closing as on 2082/03/32 108,856,039
Less: AIR of loan and advance overdue for more than 90 49.109.521
Days
AIR to be booked till date 59,746,517
AIR already booked till 2079/3/32 42,047,526
Interest income to be Booked for the period 17,698,992
ferera e e e fofiee
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5.15 Principal Indicators of Last 5 Years

I'E(.} Particulars Indicator Years
FY FY FY FY FY
2077/78 2078/79 2079/80 2080/81 2081/82
1 |Net Profit / Total Income Yo 19.07 11197 1.45 (0.30) 9.79
2 |Earnings Per Share - - - - : 2
Basic Earnings Per Share Rs. 22.54 24 81 3.14 (0.63) 22.34
Eﬁ:ﬁfd Eaniugs ex Rs. 22.54 24 81 3.14 (0.63) 22.34
3 |Market Price Per Share Rs. 1,700.00 774.00 754.00, 1,280.00] 1,015.30
4 |Price / Earnings Ratio Times 7543 31.20 240.15| (2,038.97) 45 44
5 |Dividend on Bonus Share Y% 19.00 11.00 - - 6.65
6 |Cash Dividend % 1.00 0.58 - - 0.35
e % 10.97 13.81 13.85 16.12 13.45
and Advances
sl -oployee Expenses / % 65.15| 6675  67.65 7054  70.54
Total Operating Expenses
g [lnterest Expenses/ Mol % 421 7.71 9.91 11.20 6.13
deposit and borrowing
10 Exchange Income / Total 0% | I i ! I
Income
1, [ sens fowl % 12.24 7.86 0.92 : 6.29
Employee Expenses
(<<t bt i Loms and % 2.65 1.84 0.22|  (0.05) 1.43
Advances
13 |[Net Profit / Total Assets % 2.38 1.75 0.21 (0.05) 1.26
L[ ol Loaus-and Advances es 39575| 39771 450.69] 42221  453.32
/ Total Deposit
Total Operating Expenses G
15 fTotal Assets Yo 4.76 5.42 4.87 5.94 4.94
16 |Capital Adequacy Ratio
a) Core Capital Y 13.87 10.07 8.48 9.60 8.32
b) Supplementary Capital Y% 0.42 0.42 0.39 1.10 0.21
c¢) Total Capital Fund Y 14.29 10.49 8.87 10.71 8.54
17 |Cash Reserve ratio (CRR) % 0.56 0.55 0.55 0.67 0.56
ja | IR Ladnsand % 1.75 1.66 237 3.49 7.48
Advances
19| Weighted Average Interest (SR £ 8.43 3.97 3.66 6.24 8.52
Rate Spread
20 E:lf}i‘sl;““ Worthi(is, In Rs. 3,586.32| 41,15.97| 3,965.11| 3,857.57| 4,427.52
21 |Total Shares No. 2421.214| 2,881,244 3,198,182 3,198,182 3,198,182
22 |Total Employee No. 290 349 353 316 300
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Paid-up Capital Composition
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